
1 
 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 

7:00 P.M. 
 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR MEETING November 27, 2017 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. INVOCATION – Pastor Dave Pacheco – Delaware Grace Brethren Church 
 
3.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the regular meeting of Council 

held on November 13, 2017, as recorded and transcribed. 
 APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the organizational meeting of 

Council held on November 20, 2017, as recorded and transcribed.  
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Parks and Recreation 

Advisory Board meeting held October 17, 2017. 
B. Resolution No. 17-63, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to 

sign any agreements pertaining to the Police Department and other 
city, county, or state agencies for purposes of exchanging Law 
Enforcement Automated Data System (LEADS) information.  

C. Resolution No. 17-64, a resolution authorizing the installation of 
certain traffic control devices on the west side of Channing Street 
between East Winter Street and East Central Avenue to prohibit 
parking on school days between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 4:00 
p.m.  

 
6. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
7. COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
8. PRESENTATION 
 A. Proclamation recognizing the 175 year anniversary for Ohio 

Wesleyan University – President Rock Jones 
 
9. CONSIDERATION OF NEW LIQUOR PERMITS 

A. Eva LLC DBA Vina Veritas Tavern, 15 E. Winter St., Delaware, 



2 
 

Ohio 43015. Permit Class:  D5 
 
10.  7:20 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 

17-72, an ordinance for the Judith D. Hook Revocable Trust for approval 
of a Rezoning Amendment for approximately 44.258 acres on parcel # 
519-312-01-009-000 from R-4 (Medium Density Residential District) and 
R-6 (Multi-Family Residential District) to R-3 (One-Family Residential 
District) and located on the west side of Troy Road.   

 
11. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 17-73, an ordinance declaring the 

improvement to certain parcels along Central Avenue in the City to be a 
public purpose and exempt from taxation pursuant to ORC 5709.40(B); 
providing for the collection and deposit of service payments and 
specifying the purposes for which those service payments may be 
expended; and authorizing school compensation payment, and declaring 
an emergency.   

 
12. 7:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND FIRST READING of Ordinance No. 17-

74, an ordinance making appropriations for the Year 2018 and declaring 
an emergency.  

 
13. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-75, an ordinance supplementing 

the 2017 Appropriations Ordinance to provide funding for Preliminary 
Engineering Services for the Point Railroad Bridge Project (DEL-36-
11.03), and declaring an emergency.  

 
14. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-76, an ordinance supplementing 

the 2017 Appropriations Ordinance to provide additional funding of 
Planning Refunds to allow a refund of previously collected additional 
transportation fees related to the Communities at Glenross subdivision, 
and declaring an emergency.   

 
15. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
16. COUNCIL COMMENTS  
 
17.  EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 121.22 

(G) (3) pending or imminent court action, Section 121.22 (G) (1) 
personnel, Section 121.22 (G) (5) matters required to be kept confidential 
by State statute, Section 121.22 (G) (2) acquisition of property for public 
purpose and 121.22(G) (8) consideration of confidential information 
related to a request for economic development assistance. 

 
18. ADJOURNMENT 





















FACT SHEET 

AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM B DATE:  11/27/2017 

ORDINANCE NO: RESOLUTION NO: 17-63 

READING: FIRST PUBLIC HEARING: NO 

TO: Mayor and Members of City Council 

FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

VIA: Bruce Pijanowski, Police Chief 

TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN ANY 
AGREEMENTS PERTAINING TO THE POLICE DEPARTMENT AND OTHER 
CITY, COUNTY, OR STATE AGENCIES FOR PURPOSES OF EXCHANGING LAW 
ENFORCMENT AUTOMATED DATA SYSTEM (LEADS)  INFORMATION. 

BACKGROUND: 
The City of Delaware Police Department has subscribed to the Law 
Enforcement Automated Data System (LEADS) since its inception.  As such, 
Delaware Police Department members regularly gather, transmit and share 
LEADS information with other authorized Law Enforcement agencies within the 
county and state.  Recent changes enacted by LEADS security now require a 
written exchange of information agreement exist between the two sharing 
agencies prior to dissemination of any LEADS information with. This particular 
agreement is with the Delaware County Emergency Communications Center. 
This resolution will allow the City Manager to sign other substantially similar 
agreements that are now necessary due to the new security requirements. 

REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Authorization for the City Manager to sign any agreements pertaining to the 
Police Department and other city, county or state agencies will ensure the 
Police Department remains compliant with current LEADS security directives 
and required information between agencies remain unobstructed. 



COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
No cost to the city, although certain liabilities are assumed.  
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Bruce Pijanowski, Chief of Police 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Copy of Agreement 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-63 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
TO SIGN ANY AGREEMENTS PERTAINING TO THE 
POLICE DEPARTMENT AND OTHER CITY, COUNTY, 
OR STATE AGENCIES FOR PURPOSES OF 
EXCHANGING LAW ENFORCMENT AUTOMATED 
DATA SYSTEM (LEADS)  INFORMATION. 

WHEREAS, the Receiving Party desires to receive from the 9-1-1 Center 
certain criminal justice information and other information located within the 
Law Enforcement Automated Data System upon request by the Receiving Party 
from time to time; and 

WHEREAS, the 9-1-1 Center desires to provide such information to the 
Receiving Party pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 

SECTION 1.  That the City of Delaware hereby agrees to the terms of the 
LEADS Information exchange Agreement and authorizes the city manager to 
sign any such similar agreement with other agencies to allow the police 
department to continue to exchange LEADS Information. 

SECTION 2.    This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its 
passage. 

PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
ABSTAIN ____ 

ATTEST: _______________________________      ________________________ 
CITY CLERK MAYOR 



1 
 

LEADS Information Exchange Agreement 

This agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into on the ___ day of ______________, 20____ 
(the “Effective Date”) by and between the Delaware County Emergency Communications (the 
“9-1-1 Center”) and the City Of Delaware Police Department (the “Receiving Party”). 

WHEREAS, the Receiving Party desires to receive from the 9-1-1 Center certain criminal justice 
information and other information located within the Law Enforcement Automated Data 
System upon request by the Receiving Party from time to time; and 

WHEREAS, the 9-1-1 Center desires to provide such information to the Receiving Party 
pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE the parties agree to the following: 

Section 1: Definitions 

a. “Applicable Laws” means all federal, state and local statutes, laws, rules, regulations, 
ordinances, judicial and court rules, and all operating manuals, policy manuals, user agreements 
and other published materials related to the access, collection, storage, use, dissemination and 
release of CJI from LEADS, including, without limitation, Ohio Revised Code Sections 5503.10 
and 2913.04(C), Ohio Administrative Code Chapter 4501:2-10, LEADS Operating Manual, 
LEADS Security Policy, NCIC Operating Manual and LEADS administrative messages, 
newsletters and training materials, including any and all amendments, modifications, updates or 
additions to any or all of the foregoing.   

b. “CJA” means a criminal justice agency, as defined in the LEADS Security Policy and the 
Ohio Administrative Code in effect at the time this agreement is executed.  

c. “CJI” means criminal justice information, as defined in the LEADS Security Policy and the 
Ohio Administrative Code in effect at the time this agreement is executed. 

d. “LEADS” means the Law Enforcement Automated Data System, which is the statewide 
computerized network providing data and communications for criminal justice agencies within 
the State of Ohio administered by the Ohio State Highway Patrol.  

e. “LEADS Operating Manual” means that certain Law Enforcement Automated Data System 
Operating Manual, as the same may be amended, modified and updated from time to time. 

f. “LEADS Security Policy” means that certain Law Enforcement Automated Data System 
Security Policy, as the same may be amended, modified and updated from time to time. 

g. “NCIC Operating Manual” means that certain National Crime Information Center Operating 
Manual, as the same may be amended, modified and updated from time to time. 



2 
 

Section 2: Term 

This Agreement shall take immediate effect upon approval by all Parties and shall continue in 
full force and effect for one (1) year, and it shall automatically renew on a yearly basis. This 
Agreement may only be amended in writing with the mutual consent and agreement of the 
Parties. Either party may terminate this Contract at any time and for any reason by giving at 
least thirty (30) days advance notice, in writing, to the other. 

Section 3: Purpose 

The 9-1-1 Center agrees to provide to the Receiving Party any CJI and other information from 
LEADS requested by an authorized agent, employee or representative of the Receiving Party.  

Section 4: Representations and Warranties 

The Receiving Party represents and warrants the following: (a) the Receiving Party is a CJA and 
is authorized pursuant to all Applicable Laws to receive CJI and other information from 
LEADS; (b) the Receiving Party is not in violation of any Applicable Laws as of the Effective 
Date; and (c) the Receiving Party will remain in compliance with all Applicable Laws during 
the term of this Agreement. 

Section 5: Obligations of the Receiving Party 

The Receiving Party agrees that it will do all of the following:  

Section 5.1: Use of System: Request, access and use CJI and information obtained from 
LEADS for official criminal justice purposes only and for no other purposes. 

Section 5.2: Dissemination: Perform any secondary dissemination of CJI or information 
obtained from LEADS in accordance with all Applicable Laws.  

Section 5.3: Record Keeping: Maintain records regarding Receiving Party’s use and 
dissemination of CJI.  

Section 5.4: Training: Ensure all employees, agents and representatives of Receiving Party 
having access to CJI and information obtained from LEADS receive proper initial and ongoing 
training and maintain a record of all such persons receiving training, including the date, time 
and subject matter of the training. 

Section 5.5: Security: Limit access to CJI and information obtained from LEADS to authorized 
employees, agents and representatives of Receiving Party, except in situations where 
dissemination is permitted or required by Applicable Laws, and destroy all hard copy printouts 
of CJI and other information obtained from LEADS promptly upon the Receiving Party’s 
reasonable determination that such information is no longer needed by the Receiving Party and 
in accordance with law and the CJA’s record retention schedule. 



3 
 

Section 6: Auditing  

The 9-1-1 Center and the LEADS staff shall each have access to records as are reasonably 
necessary and permitted by Applicable Laws to audit all logs and records pertaining to CJI 
obtained from LEADS to determine whether Receiving Party is operating in compliance with 
the terms of this Agreement and all Applicable Laws. 

Section 7: Legal Contingencies  

In the event a change in law, whether by statute, judicial determination, or administrative 
action, affects this Agreement or the ability of the Parties to enter into, or continue to operate 
pursuant to, this Agreement, the Parties mutually agree to immediately institute a review of this 
Agreement. The Parties agree to negotiate in good faith to address any necessary modifications 
to this Agreement, to the extent permitted by applicable law. 

Section 8: Miscellaneous Terms & Conditions  

Section 5.1: Entire Agreement: This Agreement shall constitute the entire understanding and 
agreement between the Parties and shall supersede all prior understandings and agreements 
relating to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement shall not be assigned. 

Section 5.2: Governing Law and Disputes: This Agreement shall be governed by and 
interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Ohio. The Parties shall make good faith 
efforts to directly negotiate any disputes arising from this Agreement. If direct negotiations shall 
fail, the Parties agree to mediate the dispute with a mediator chosen by agreement between the 
Parties. If mediation shall fail, any and all legal disputes arising from this Agreement may only 
be filed in and heard before the courts of Delaware County, Ohio. 

Section 5.3: Headings: The subject headings of the Sections and Subsections in this Agreement 
are included for purposes of convenience only and shall not affect the construction or 
interpretation of any of its provisions.  

Section 5.4: Drafting, Counterparts, and Signatures: This Agreement shall be deemed to have 
been drafted by both Parties and no purposes of interpretation shall be made to the contrary. 
This Contract may be executed in counterparts. Any person executing this Contract in a 
representative capacity hereby warrants that he/she has authority to sign this Contract or has 
been duly authorized by his/her principal to execute this Contract on such principal’s behalf 
and is authorized to bind such principal. 

Section 5.5: Waivers: No waiver of breach of any provision of this Agreement shall in any way 
constitute a waiver of any prior, concurrent, subsequent, or future breach of this Agreement or 
any other provision hereof. No term or provision of this Agreement shall be deemed waived, 
and no breach excused, unless such a waiver or consent is expressly made in writing and signed 
by the party claimed to have waived or consented. Such waiver shall not constitute and shall not 
in any way be interpreted as a waiver of any other term or provision or future breach unless said 
waiver expressly states an intention to waive another specific term or provision or future breach. 



4 
 

Section 5.6: Severability: If any item, condition, portion, or section of this Agreement or the 
application thereof to any person, premises, or circumstance shall to any extent, be held to be 
invalid or unenforceable, the remainder hereof and the application of such term, condition, 
provision, or section to persons, premises, or circumstances other than those as to whom it shall 
be held invalid or unenforceable shall not be affected thereby, and this Agreement and all the 
terms, conditions, provisions, or sections hereof shall, in all other respects, continue in full force 
and effect.  

Section 5.7: Notices: Any notices provided regarding this Agreement shall be effective if 
delivered via hand delivery, USPS, a reputable national overnight courier service, or email to 
the other party at the address listed below the party’s signature to this Agreement.  

Section 5.8: Consideration: The parties agree that the services performed/provided and/or 
deliverables provided/received pursuant to this Agreement are good and valuable consideration 
and that this Agreement is supported by sufficient good and valuable consideration. The Parties 
agree not to challenge this Agreement on the basis of a lack of consideration. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement.  

Delaware City Police 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Chief Bruce Pijanowski 

 
 
 
___________________ 
Date 
 
 

Delaware County Board of 
Commissioners 
 
By: 
 
 _______________________________ 
Jeffery Benton, President of the Board 
Under Resolution No. 11-137 and 
Resolution No. 17-   
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
___________________ 
Date 
 

Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Carol O’Brien    
Delaware County Prosecuting 
Attorney 
 

 
 
 
___________________ 
Date 
 

  



5 
 

NO FISCAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION REQUIRED (RC 5705.41(D)): No actual 
funds are to be exchanged between the Parties in connection with this Agreement.  No Fiscal 
Officer’s Certification is required. 



FACT SHEET

AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM C DATE: 11/27/2017 

ORDINANCE NO:  RESOLUTION NO: 17-64 

READING: FIRST  PUBLIC HEARING: NO 

TO: Mayor and Members of City Council  

FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

VIA: William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 

TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF CERTAIN TRAFFIC 
CONTROL DEVICES ON THE WEST SIDE OF CHANNING STREET BETWEEN 
EAST WINTER STREET AND EAST CENTRAL AVENUE TO PROHIBIT PARKING 
ON SCHOOL DAYS BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 7:00 AM AND 4:00 PM. 

BACKGROUND: 
City of Delaware Police Officers observed issues with vehicular maneuverability 
during the School Day, in particular drop-off and pick-up times, on Channing 
Street between East Winter Street and East Central Avenue due to vehicles 
being parking along the west side of the street.  This section of Channing Street 
is approximately 24-feet wide, has a pull off area along the east side of the 
street for parking and curb along the west side. Staff recommends that a No 
Parking Zone be established on School Days between the hours of 7:00 AM and 
4:00 PM to address this issue and coincide with other parking restrictions 
already in place along the west side of Channing Street between East William 
Street and East Winter Street adjacent to the Conger Elementary School.  The 
Delaware City Schools also endorse these changes. 

REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The placement of regulatory signage requires City Council authorization for 
permanent enforcement. 



COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The action is being taken as a result of the Parking and Safety Committee 
recommendation at the November 20, 2017 meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The cost of materials to install the signage is estimated at $150.00 to come out 
of the Public Works Traffic Division annual operating budget. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)r 
Exhibit A 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-64

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION 
OF CERTAIN TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES ON THE 
WEST SIDE OF CHANNING STREET BETWEEN EAST 
WINTER STREET AND EAST CENTRAL AVENUE TO 
PROHIBIT PARKING ON SCHOOL DAYS BETWEEN 
THE HOURS OF 7:00 AM AND 4:00 PM. 

WHEREAS, the No Parking Zone has been requested to provide for the 
safe maneuverability of vehicles on Channing Street on School Days; and 

WHEREAS, the Parking and Safety Committee has endorsed the 
installation by a 3-0 vote at the November 20, 2017 meeting. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL FOR THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, STATE OF OHIO: 

SECTION 1.  That a No Parking Zone to prohibit parking on School Days 
between the hours of 7:00 AM and 4:00 PM will be installed on the west side of 
Channing Street from East Winter Street to East Central Avenue. 

SECTION 2. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 
immediately after its passage. 

PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS___ 
ABSTAIN ____ 

ATTEST: _______________________________      ________________________ 
CITY CLERK MAYOR 



Exhibit A: Channing St (E. Winter St to E. Central Ave) No Parking, School Days, 7AM-4PM 

 

jormeroid


jormeroid


jormeroid
No Parking,School Days,
7AM-4PM











  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  10    DATE: 11/27/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-72    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING:  YES 
       NOVEMBER 27, 2017 at 7:20 P.M. 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR THE JUDITH D. HOOK REVOCABLE TRUST FOR 
APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FOR APPROXIMATELY 44.258 
ACRES ON PARCEL #519-312-01-009-000 FROM R-4 (MEDIUM DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND R-6 (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) 
TO R-3 (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE WEST 
SIDE OF TROY ROAD. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Per Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on November 1, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 17-72 

 
AN ORDINANCE FOR THE JUDITH D. HOOK 
REVOCABLE TRUST FOR APPROVAL OF A REZONING 
AMENDMENT FOR APPROXIMATELY 44.258 ACRES 
ON PARCEL #519-312-01-009-000 FROM R-4 
(MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND R-6 
(MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) TO R-3 
(ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND 
LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF TROY ROAD. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on November 1, 
2017 recommended approval of a Rezoning Amendment for the Judith D. Hook 
Trust for approximately 44.258 acres on parcel #519-312-01-009-000 from R-4 
(Medium Density Residential District) and R-6 (Multi-Family Residential 
District) to R-3 (One-Family Residential District) and located on the west side of 
Troy Road (2017-2592). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the Rezoning Amendment for the Judith D. Hook Trust 
for approximately 44.258 acres on parcel #519-312-01-009-000 from R-4 
(Medium Density Residential District) and R-6 (Multi-Family Residential 
District) to R-3 (One-Family Residential District) and located on the west side of 
Troy Road, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

























  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 11    DATE: 11/27/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-73    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Sean Hughes, Economic Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE DECLARING THE IMPROVEMENT TO CERTAIN PARCELS ALONG 
CENTRAL AVENUE IN THE CITY TO BE  A PUBLIC PURPOSE AND EXEMPT FROM 
TAXATION PURSUANT TO ORC 5709.40(B); PROVIDING FOR THE COLLECTION AND 
DEPOSIT OF SERVICE PAYMENTS AND SPECIFYING THE PURPOSES FOR WHICH 
THOSE SERVICE PAYMENTS MAY BE EXPENDED; AND AUTHORIZING SCHOOL 
COMPENSATION PAYMENTS, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
We are requesting Council to allow parcels in Exhibit A to be exempted from taxation 
through a Tax Increment Finance (TIF) ordinance with service payments to be made by 
property owners in lieu of property taxes. Service payments equaling the amount of 
property taxes received by the schools if unabated would be distributed to the schools 
and an amount equal to non-school property taxes would be made to Delaware County 
Treasurer to be provided to the City of Delaware. These funds would be used for future 
necessary improvements to Central Ave. that would possibly be required if either the 
current Jackson retail development were to lease to a tenant that required such 
improvements or a second parcel to the West  of the Jackson parcel developed. These 
funds would be used in combination with developer contributions for to pay for these 
road improvements. The proceeds from a non-school TIF are estimated to be nearly 
$140,000 after 30 years. The first developer, Jackson Real Estate & Development, has 
made a $50,000 contribution towards these future improvements as part of their outlot 
development. This contribution was a condition of approval made by Planning 
Commission on their August 2, 2017 Planning Commission meeting. 
 



This TIF follows all criteria set forth in ORDINANCE NO. 05-55 – an ordinance adopting 
the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District principles for the City of Delaware even 
though this is a parcel TIF and not a District TIF: 

• The TIF proceeds are used for a public purpose – needed improvements to Central 
Ave. 

• The boundaries of the proposed TIF will not impact future opportunities to utilize 
other parcels for further improvements. 

• The road improvements will be completed within the 30 years of the proposed 
TIF. 

• Improvements funded by the TIF benefit the entire community. 
• Improvements are accessible with sidewalks and ADA ramps. 
• This is a non-school TIF, and, therefore, does not impact the schools. 
• Other agencies supported by property tax revenues were considered, but due to 

the nature of the TIF ONLY being for improvements and not through baseline tax 
values, the TIF revenues have little impact. 

• While we are not charging an administrative fee for administering the TIF, we are 
collecting contributions from the developer(s) to be applied to the public 
improvements. 

 
This project also will create jobs and payroll taxes, thus, benefiting the greater City of 
Delaware economy. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Under ORC 5709.40(B) it is required to pass an ordinance, after proper required school 
notifications, to allow funds for parcels under Tax Increment Finance to be redistributed 
for necessary public improvements that would be needed for development project to 
move forward. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
COST: ~$140,000 
FUND SOURCES: Service payments made in lieu of property taxes by property 
owners in the TIF. 
BUDGETED: NO 
 
DEPARTMENTS IMPACTED: Economic Development, Public Works, Finance 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Sean Hughes, Economic Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval  



 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
TIF School Notification Letters 
TIF Ordinance 
Exhibit A – Identification and Map of the Parcels 
Exhibit B – Public Infrastructure Improvements 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-73 
 

AN ORDINANCE DECLARING THE IMPROVEMENT TO 
CERTAIN PARCELS ALONG CENTRAL AVENUE IN THE 
CITY TO BE A PUBLIC PURPOSE AND EXEMPT FROM 
TAXATION PURSUANT TO ORC 5709.40(B); 
PROVIDING FOR THE COLLECTION AND DEPOSIT OF 
SERVICE PAYMENTS AND SPECIFYING THE 
PURPOSES FOR WHICH THOSE SERVICE PAYMENTS 
MAY BE EXPENDED; AND AUTHORIZING SCHOOL 
COMPENSATION PAYMENTS, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY.  

 
WHEREAS, Ohio Revised Code (“ORC”) 5709.40, 5709.42, and 5709.43 

(collectively, the “TIF Act”) authorize this Council, by ordinance, to declare the 
improvement to parcels of real property located within the City to be a public 
purpose and exempt from taxation, require the owner of each parcel to make 
service payments in lieu of taxes, establish a municipal public improvement tax 
increment equivalent fund for the deposit of the those service payments, and 
specify the purposes for which money in that fund will be expended; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to implement a tax increment financing 

program on the Parcels (as defined in Section 1) pursuant to the TIF Act to enable 
the City to make public infrastructure improvements that will directly benefit the 
Parcels; and 

 
WHEREAS, notice of this proposed ordinance has been delivered to the 

Board of Education of the Delaware City School District and the Delaware Joint 
Vocational School District in accordance with and within the time periods 
prescribed in ORC 5709.40 and 5709.83; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, Delaware County, Ohio, that: 
 
SECTION 1. Parcels.  The real property subject to this ordinance is 

identified and depicted on Exhibit A (as currently or subsequently configured, 
the “Parcels”, with each individual parcel a “Parcel”).   

 
SECTION 2. Public Infrastructure Improvements.  This Council hereby 

designates the public infrastructure improvements described in Exhibit B (the 
“Public Infrastructure Improvements”) and any other public infrastructure 
improvements hereafter designated by ordinance as public infrastructure 
improvements made, to be made or in the process of being made by the City that 
directly benefit, or that once made will directly benefit, the Parcels.   

 



- 2 - 
 

SECTION 3. Exemption.  This Council hereby finds and determines that 
100% of the increase in assessed value of each Parcel subsequent to the effective 
date of this ordinance (which increase in assessed value is hereinafter referred to 
as the “Improvement” as defined in ORC 5709.40(A)) is hereby declared to be a 
public purpose and will be exempt from taxation for a period commencing on the 
date an Improvement attributable to a new structure on that Parcel first appears 
on the tax list and duplicate were it not for the exemption granted in this 
ordinance and ending on the earlier of (a) 30 years after such commencement or 
(b) the date on which the City can no longer require service payments in lieu of 
taxes, all in accordance with the requirements of the TIF Act.  The exemption 
provided by this ordinance is subordinate to any exemption for a Parcel granted 
pursuant to ORC 3735.65 to 3735.70.     

 
SECTION 4. Service Payments.  As provided in ORC 5709.42, the owner of 

each Parcel is hereby required to make service payments in lieu of taxes with 
respect to the Improvement allocable to each Parcel to the Delaware County 
Treasurer on or before the final dates for payment of real property taxes.  The 
service payments in lieu of taxes will be charged and collected in the same manner 
and in the same amount as the real property taxes that would have been charged 
and collected against that Improvement if it were not exempt from taxation 
pursuant to Section 3, including any penalties and interest (collectively, the 
“Service Payments”).  The Service Payments, and any other payments with respect 
to each Improvement that are received in connection with the reduction required 
by ORC 319.302, 321.24, 323.152 and 323.156, as the same may be amended 
from time to time, or any successor provisions thereto as the same may be 
amended from time to time (the “Property Tax Rollback Payments”), will be 
deposited and distributed in accordance with Section 6.  

 
SECTION 5. TIF Fund.  This Council establishes, pursuant to and in 

accordance with the provisions of ORC 5709.43, the Central Avenue Tax 
Increment Equivalent Fund (the “TIF Fund”), into which the Service Payments 
and Property Tax Rollback Payments collected with respect to the Parcels will be 
deposited.  The TIF Fund will be maintained in the custody of the City.  The City 
may use amounts deposited into the TIF Fund only for the purposes authorized 
in the TIF Act and this ordinance (as it may be amended).  The TIF Fund will 
remain in existence so long as the Service Payments and Property Tax Rollback 
Payments are collected and used for the aforesaid purposes, after which time the 
TIF Fund will be dissolved and any surplus funds remaining therein transferred 
to the City's General Fund, all in accordance with ORC 5709.43. 

  
SECTION 6. Distributions; Payment of Costs.  Pursuant to the TIF Act, the 

County Treasurer is requested to distribute the Service Payments and Property 
Tax Rollback Payments as follows: 
 

(i) To the Delaware City School District and the Delaware Joint 
Vocational School District, an amount equal to the amount the school district 



- 3 - 
 

would otherwise receive as real property tax payments (including the applicable 
portion of any Property Tax Rollback Payments) derived from the Improvement to 
each Parcel if the Improvement had not been exempt from taxation pursuant to 
this ordinance. 

 
(ii) To the City, all remaining amounts for further deposit into the TIF 

Fund for payment of costs of the Public Infrastructure Improvements, including, 
without limitation, debt charges on any notes or bonds issued to pay or reimburse 
finance costs or costs of those Public Infrastructure Improvements. 

 
All distributions required under this Section are requested to be made at 

the same time and in the same manner as real property tax distributions.  The 
City shall make any distributions to the extent not made by the County 
Treasurer. 

 
SECTION 7. Further Authorizations.  This Council hereby authorizes and 

directs the City Manager, the City Attorney, the Finance Director, and the 
Economic Development Director, or other appropriate officers of the City to deliver 
a copy of this ordinance to the Ohio Development Service Agency and to make 
such arrangements as are necessary and proper for collection of the Service 
Payments.  This Council further authorizes the City Manager, the City Attorney, 
the Finance Director, and the Economic Development Director, or other 
appropriate officers of the City to prepare and sign all agreements and instruments 
and to take any other actions as may be appropriate to implement this ordinance. 

 
SECTION 8. Open Meetings.  This Council finds and determines that all 

formal actions of this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating 
to the passage of this ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council or 
any of its committees, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its 
committees that resulted in those formal actions were in meetings open to the 
public, all in compliance with the law including ORC 121.22. 

 
SECTION 9.  Emergency Clause.  This Ordinance is declared to be an 

emergency measure necessary of the immediate preservation of the public peace, 
property, health, safety and welfare of the City, and for the reason that this 
Ordinance is required to be immediately effective in order to facilitate the 
commencement of construction of the Project; wherefore, this Ordinance shall 
be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage.  

 



- 4 - 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:    YEAS___NAYS___ 
      ABSTAIN___ 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE:   YEAS___NAYS___ 
      ABSTAIN___ 
      
PASSED: ________________, 2017.   YEAS___NAYS___ 
      ABSTAIN___ 
      
 
ATTEST:          
      CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



 

EXHIBIT A 
IDENTIFICATION AND MAP OF THE PARCELS 

 
The area within the red lines on the following map specifically identifies and depicts the 

Parcels and constitutes part of this Exhibit A.   



B-1 
 

EXHIBIT B 
PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS 

 
The Public Infrastructure Improvements consist of any “public infrastructure 

improvement” defined under ORC 5709.40(A)(7) and that directly benefits the Parcels and 
specifically include, but are not limited to, any of the following improvements that will directly 
benefit the Parcels and all related costs of those permanent improvements (including, but not 
limited to, those costs listed in ORC 133.15(B)): 

 
• Roadways. Construction, reconstruction, extension, opening, improving, widening, 

grading, draining, curbing or changing of the lines and traffic patterns of roads, highways, 
streets, intersections, bridges (both roadway and pedestrian), sidewalks, bikeways, medians 
and viaducts accessible to and serving the public, and providing signage (including traffic 
signage and informational/promotional signage), lighting systems, signalization, and 
traffic controls, and all other appurtenances thereto, including, without limitation, 
construction of improvements to Central Avenue from Troy Road to Houk Road, including 
turn lanes, repaving and traffic control devices.  

 
• Water/Sewer.  Construction, reconstruction or installation of public utility improvements 

(including any underground municipally owned utilities), storm and sanitary sewers 
(including necessary site grading therefore), water and fire protection systems, and all 
appurtenances thereto. 
 

• Environmental/Health.  Implementation of environmental remediation measures 
necessary to enable the construction of the private improvements on the Parcels or the 
Public Infrastructure Improvements, and the construction of public health facilities. 

 
• Utilities.  Construction, reconstruction, burial or installation of gas, electric and 

communication service facilities and all appurtenances thereto, including, but not limited 
to those associated with improvements described in “Roadways” above. 

 
• Stormwater.  Construction, reconstruction, relocation, modification and installation of 

stormwater and flood remediation projects and facilities, both for storm water quantity and 
quality, including the payment and reimbursement for such projects and facilities on private 
property when determined to be necessary for public health, safety and welfare. 

 
• Demolition.  Demolition, including demolition on private property when determined to be 

necessary for public health, safety and welfare. 
 

• Parks.  Construction or reconstruction of one or more public parks and park or recreational 
facilities, including grading, trees and other park plantings, park accessories and related 
improvements, multi-use trails and bridges, together with all appurtenances thereto. 

 
• Streetscape/Landscape.  Construction or installation of streetscape and landscape 

improvements including trees, tree grates, signage, curbs, sidewalks, scenic fencing, street 
and sidewalk lighting, trash receptacles, benches, newspaper racks, burial of overhead 



B-2 
 

utility lines and related improvements, together with all appurtenances thereto, including, 
but not limited to streetscape improvements in conjunction with and along the roadway 
improvements described in “Roadways” above.  

 
• Real Estate.  Acquisition of real estate or interests in real estate (including easements) (a) 

necessary to accomplish any of the foregoing improvements or (b) in aid of industry, 
commerce, distribution or research.  

 
• Professional Services.  Engineering, consulting, legal, administrative, and other 

professional services associated with the planning, design, acquisition, construction and 
installation of the foregoing improvements and real estate. 



EST 1808 

----- CITY OF -----

DELAWARE 
~OHIO~ 

To: Board of Education of the Delaware Joint Vocational School District 
DACC South Campus 
4565 Columbus Pike 
Delaware, Ohio 43015 

Subject: Notice of Ohio Revised Code Section 5709.40(B) 
Proposed Tax Increment Financing for Central A venue TIP 

October 18, 2017 

This letter constitutes notice to the Board of Education of the Delaware Joint Vocational School 
District of the intent of the City of Delaware, Ohio, to declare certain improvements to be a public 
purpose under Ohio Revised Code Section 5709.40(B). The following information is provided pursuant 
to Ohio Revised Code Sections 5709.40 and 5709.83: 

Description of Parcels to be Exempted: See Exhibit A of the attached proposed TIP Ordinance. 

Estimate of the True Value in Money of the Private Improvements: $8,264,000. 

Period for Which the Improvement to Each Parcel Will be Exempted from Taxation: The 
improvements to each parcel will be exempted for a period commencing on the date an improvement 
attributable to a new structure on the parcel appears on the tax list and duplicate and ending on the earlier 
of (a) 30 years after such commencement or (b) the date on which the City can no longer require service 
payments in lieu of taxes, all in accordance with the requirements of Ohio Revised Code Sections 5709 .40 
and 5709.42, and all <}S further described in the attached TIP ordinance. 

Percentage of the Improvement to each Parcel to be Exempted: 100%. The TIP ordinance 
provides that the School District will receive, at the same time and in the same manner as real property 
tax payments, all amounts it would otherwise receive as real property tax payments from the improvement 
to each parcel absent the exemption granted pursuant to the proposed TIP ordinance. 

CITY HALL - 1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET - DELAWARE , OHIO 43015 

cucK ww1v.delmvareohio.11et 





City _Council intends to take final action on the proposed TIF Ordinance on: November 6, 
2017. 

Sincerely, 

By {k-11i. f:)llrl 1 h,.1,1"'r{1t1 4ff11~J 
Q'fl. bt~11-ll u{r Sean Hughes 

Economic Development Director 

Title: ----'~r-->-""""""'-~,,,_,_,"--'-'-.........,=-->...;' Delaware Joint Vocational School District 
Date: --1-'--""l-7'---

Attachment: Proposed TIF Ordinance 

CITY HALL - 1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET - DELAWARE , OHIO 4 3015 

cucK w1vw.delmvareoh10.11 et 





EST 1808 

----- CITY OF -----

DELAWARE 
~OHIO~ 

To: Board of Education 
Delaware City School District 
74 W. William Street 
Delaware, Ohio 43015 

Subject: Notice of Ohio Revised Code Section 5709.40(B) 
Proposed Tax Increment Financing for Central A venue TIF 

October 18, 2017 

This letter constitutes notice to the Board of Education of the Delaware City School District of the 
intent of the City of Delaware, Ohio, to declare ce1iain improvements to be a public purpose under Ohio 
Revised Code Section 5709.40(B). The following information is provided pursuant to Ohio Revised 
Code Sections 5709.40 and 5709.83: 

Description of Parcels to be Exempted: See Exhibit A of the attached proposed TIF Ordinance. 

Estimate of the True Value in Money of the Private Improvements: $8,264,000. 

Period for Which the Improvement to Each Parcel Will be Exempted from Taxation: The 
improvements to each parcel will be exempted for a period commencing on the date an improvement 
attributable to a new structure on the parcel appears on the tax list and duplicate and ending on the earlier 
of (a) 30 years after such commencement or (b) the date on which the City can no longer require service 
payments in lieu of taxes, all in accordance with the requirements of Ohio Revised Code Sections 5709.40 
and 5709.42, and all as further described in the attached TIF ordinance. 

Percentage of the Improvement to each Parcel to be Exempted: 100%. The TIF ordinance 
provides that the School District will receive, at the same time and in the same manner as real property 
tax payments, all amounts it would otherwise receive as real property tax payments from the improvement 
to each parcel absent the exemption granted pursuant to the proposed TIF ordinance. Therefore, Ohio 
Revised Code Section 5709.40(D) does not require the School District's prior approval of the TIF 
ordinance. 

CITY HALL - 1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET - DELAWARE , OHIO 43015 

cucK ww1v.de/awareoh10.11et 





City Council intends to take final action on the proposed TIF Ordinance on: November 6, 
2017. 

Sincerely, 

By (L·{-b G>!l/ A~.,r.;;-l') ;k;a/, 
(} "t Qh,._l.f "6--Sean Hughes 

1 

Economic Development Director 

Received by:lJV\\"'1.Q 0.J 1~ r'\{\ ~ 
Title:.lrf O.&Llrt:Y I Cfu , Delaware City School District 
Date: OcJ: ~ o , 2017 

Attachment: Proposed TIF Ordinance 

CITY HALL - 1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET - DELAWARE , OHIO 4 3015 

cucK 1V1Vtv.delmvarenh10 net 





ORDINANCE NO. 17-

DECLARING THE IMPROVEMENT TO CERTAIN PARCELS ALONG 
CENTRAL A VENUE IN THE CITY TO BE A PUBLIC PURPOSE AND 
EXEMPT FROM TAXATION PURSUANT TO ORC 5709.40(B); PROVIDING 
FOR THE COLLECTION AND DEPOSIT OF SERVICE PAYMENTS AND 
SPECIFYING THE PURPOSES FOR WHICH THOSE SERVICE PAYMENTS 
MAY BE EXPENDED; AND AUTHORIZING SCHOOL COMPENSATION 
PAYMENTS. 

WHEREAS, Ohio Revised Code ("ORC") 5709.40, 5709.42, and 5709.43 (collectively, 
the "TIF Act") authorize this Council, by ordinance, to declare the improvement to parcels of real 
property located within the City to be a public purpose and exempt from taxation, require the 
owner of each parcel to make service payments in lieu of taxes, establish a municipal public 
improvement tax increment equivalent fund for the deposit of the those service payments, and 
specify the purposes for which money in that fund will be expended; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to implement a tax increment financing program on the 
Parcels (as defined in Section 1) pursuant to the TIP Act to enable the City to make public 
infrastructure improvements that will directly benefit the Parcels; and 

WHEREAS, notice of this proposed ordinance has been delivered to the Board of 
Education of the Delaware City School District and the Delaware Joint Vocational School 
District in accordance with and within the time periods prescribed in ORC 5709.40 and 5709.83; 
and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Delaware, 
Delaware County, Ohio, that: 

SECTION 1. Parcels. The real prope1ty subject to this ordinance is identified and 
depicted on Exhibit A (as currently or subsequently configured, the "Parcels", with each 
individual parcel a "Parcel"). 

SECTION 2. Public Infrastructure Improvements. This Council hereby designates the 
public infrastructure improvements described in Exhibit B (the "Public Infrastructure 
Improvements") and any other public infrastructure improvements hereafter designated by 
ordinance as public infrastructure improvements made, to be made or in the process of being made 
by the City that directly benefit, or that once made will directly benefit, the Parcels. 

SECTION 3. Exemption. This Council hereby finds and determines that 100% of the 
increase in assessed value of each Parcel subsequent to the effective date of this ordinance (which 
increase in assessed value is hereinafter referred to as the "Improvement' as defined in ORC 
5709.40(A)) is hereby declared to be a public purpose and will be exempt from taxation for a 
period commencing on the date an Improvement atu·ibutable to a new structure on that Parcel first 
appears on the tax list and duplicate were it not for the exemption granted in this ordinance and 
ending on the earlier of (a) 30 years after such commencement or (b) the date on which the City 



can no longer require service payments in lieu of taxes, all in accordance with the requirements of 
the TIF Act. The exemption provided by this ordinance is subordinate to any exemption for a 
Parcel granted pursuant to ORC 3735.65 to 3735.70. 

SECTION 4. Service Payments. As provided in ORC 5709.42, the owner of each Parcel 
is hereby required to make service payments in lieu of taxes with respect to the Improvement 
allocable to each Parcel to the Delaware County Treasurer on or before the final dates for payment 
of real prope1ty taxes. The service payments in lieu of taxes will be charged and collected in the 
same manner and in the same amount as the real prope1ty taxes that would have been charged and 
collected against that Improvement if it were not exempt from taxation pursuant to Section 3, 
including any penalties and interest (collectively, the "Service Payments"). The Service Payments, 
and any other payments with respect to each Improvement that are received in connection with the 
reduction required by ORC 319.302, 321.24, 323.152 and 323.156, as the same may be amended 
from time to time, or any successor provisions thereto as the same may be amended from time to 
time (the "Property Tax Rollback Payments"), will be deposited and distributed in accordance with 
Section 6. 

SECTION 5. TIF Fund. This Council establishes, pursuant to and in accordance with 
the provisions of ORC 5709.43, the Central Avenue Tax Increment Equivalent Fund (the "TIF 
Funcf'), into which the Service Payments and Prope1iy Tax Rollback Payments collected with 
respect to the Parcels will be deposited. The TIF Fund will be maintained in the custody of the 
City. The City may use amounts deposited into the TIF Fund only for the purposes authorized in 
the TIF Act and this ordinance (as it may be amended). The TIF Fund will remain in existence so 
long as the Service Payments and Prope1ty Tax Rollback Payments are collected and used for the 
aforesaid purposes, after which time the TIF Fund will be dissolved and any surplus funds 
remaining therein transfened to the City's General Fund, all in accordance with ORC 5709.43. 

SECTION 6. Distributions; Payment of Costs. Pursuant to the TIF Act, the County 
Treasurer is requested to distribute the Service Payments and Prope1ty Tax Rollback Payments as 
follows: 

(i) To the Delaware City School District and the Delaware Joint Vocational School 
District, an amount equal to the amount the school district would otherwise receive as real property 
tax payments (including the applicable p01iion of any Prope1iy Tax Rollback Payments) derived 
from the Improvement to each Parcel if the Improvement had not been exempt from taxation 
pursuant to this ordinance. 

(ii) To the City, all remammg amounts for further deposit into the TIF Fund for 
payment of costs of the Public Infrastrncture Improvements, including, without limitation, debt 
charges on any notes or bonds issued to pay or reimburse finance costs or costs of those Public 
Infrastrncture Improvements. 

All distributions required under this Section are requested to be made at the same time 
and in the same manner as real property tax distributions. The City shall make any distributions 
to the extent not made by the County Treasurer. 

- 2 -



SECTION 7. Further Authorizations. This Council hereby authorizes and directs the City 
Manager, the City Attorney, the Finance Director, and the Economic Development Director, or 
other appropriate officers of the City to deliver a copy of this ordinance to the Ohio Development 
Service Agency and to make such arrangements as are necessary and proper for collection of the 
Service Payments. This Council further authorizes the City Manager, the City Attorney, the 
Finance Director, and the Economic Development Director, or other appropriate officers of the 
City to prepare and sign all agreements and instruments and to take any other actions as may be 
appropriate to implement this ordinance. 

SECTION 8. Open Meetings. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions 
of this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of this ordinance 
were taken in an open meeting of this Council or any of its committees, and that all deliberations of 
this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those fmmal actions were in meetings open 
to the public, all in compliance with the law including ORC 121.22. 

SECTION 9. Effective Date. This ordinance is effective on the earliest date permitted 
by law. 

PASSED: , 2017. -------

ATTEST: _________ _ 
CITY CLERK 

YEAS NAYS 
ABSTAIN 

MAYOR 

- 3 -



EXHIBIT A 
IDENTIFICATION AND MAP OF THE PARCELS 

The area within the red lines on the following map specifically identifies and depicts the 
Parcels and constitutes part of this Exhibit A. 

De:l•,..re County Alida.or 
George IC altsa 

Central Ave. TIF Parcels 
&nlDl'INllion mftlSNd wlthlnlh.im !nip lft., bmUHd ID ·-rwltylDClllll:e , id.,tity mnd inYWllGrJIWld pualswllhln o.la-• County. 

O.l&rw .. Courty ann>t .. rnntor gi.mf'Wll• lh•lnbrmdon mnbin•d h .. ln. ln:kJdSlg.bul nol lrrilltd lo Iii •aarlJC'f 
u compi.11tn•L Ttm ll'Ulp pwui .._ stown .. appn:i•"'-• ~lhl1 Wom\llUonc.,nott. CDnllruct .. or a.ldH •,.U .. ducription• of ap1rml 

Road l"llW.WomYlion m ob1*wd tcm J"IMA ~la achlnilll•.d by If\• o•-reCountylluldi'll O.~t (7.&0.tlS.2:101). 
"-- rlJMrl _,,STD,. orominlcn11 lobl Dtil-recoun1yAudll:Of"1offk:e • Mlcogls@ca..d•'--.oh..UL 

Pf.-twd by: Dt&.m Coun~ Audilof"1 GtS Ofra 
--·•••Nilloto '" 



EXHIBITB 
PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS 

The Public Infrastructure Improvements consist of any "public infrastructure 
improvement" defined under ORC 5709.40(A)(7) and that directly benefits the Parcels and 
specifically include, but are not limited to, any of the following improvements that will directly 
benefit the Parcels and all related costs of those permanent improvements (including, but not 
limited to, those costs listed in ORC 133.15(B)): 

• Roadways. Construction, reconstruction, extension, openmg, improving, widening, 
grading, draining, curbing or changing of the lines and traffic patterns of roads, 
highways, streets, intersections, bridges (both roadway and pedestrian), sidewalks, 
bikeways, medians and viaducts accessible to and serving the public, and providing 
signage (including traffic signage and informational/promotional signage ), lighting 
systems, signalization, and traffic controls, and all other appurtenances thereto, including, 
without limitation, construction of improvements to Central A venue from Troy Road to 
Houk Road, including turn lanes, repaving and traffic control devices. 

• Water/Sewer. Construction, reconstruction or installation of public utility improvements 
(including any underground municipally owned utilities), storm and sanitary sewers 
(including necessary site grading therefore), water and fire protection systems, and all 
appmtenances thereto. 

• Environmental/Health. Implementation of environmental remediation measures 
necessary to enable the construction of the private improvements on the Parcels or the 
Public Infrastructure Improvements, and the construction of public health facilities. 

• Utilities. Construction, reconstruction, burial or installation of gas, electric and 
communication service facilities and all appmtenances thereto, including, but not limited 
to those associated with improvements described in "Roadways" above. 

• Stormwater. Construction, reconstruction, relocation, modification and installation of 
stormwater and flood remediation projects and facilities, both for storm water quantity 
and quality, including the payment and reimbursement for such projects and facilities on 
private property when determined to be necessary for public health, safety and welfare. 

• Demolition. Demolition, including demolition on private property when dete1mined to 
be necessary for public health, safety and welfare. 

• Parks. Construction or reconstruction of one or more public parks and park or 
recreational facilities, including grading, trees and other park plantings, park accessories 
and related improvements, multi-use trails and bridges, together with all appurtenances 
thereto. 

• Streetscape/Landscape. Construction or installation of streetscape and landscape 
improvements including trees, tree grates, signage, curbs, sidewalks, scenic fencing, 

B-1 



street and sidewalk lighting, trash receptacles, benches, newspaper racks, burial of 
overhead utility lines and related improvements, together with all appurtenances thereto, 
including, but not limited to streetscape improvements in conjunction with and along the 
roadway improvements described in "Roadways" above. 

• Real Estate. Acquisition of real estate or interests in real estate (including easements) 
(a) necessary to accomplish any of the foregoing improvements or (b) in aid of industry, 
commerce, distribution or research. 

• Professional Services. Engineering, consulting, legal, administrative, and other 
professional services associated with the planning, design, acquisition, constrnction and 
installation of the foregoing improvements and real estate. 

B-2 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  12    DATE: 11/27/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-74    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       November 27, 2017 at 7:30 p.m. 
       December 11, 2017 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  -- 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE YEAR 2018, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This is the first reading and first public hearing of the budget.  The budget is 
required to be adopted by Council pursuant to Section 78 of the City Charter. 
 
The second reading and second public hearing is scheduled for December 11 
and work sessions are scheduled for December 2 and December 4. 
 
The 2018 Line Item Budget and the 2018 Programmatic Budget are available 
on the website at:  http://www.delawareohio.net/city-council-2017/ 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 

http://www.delawareohio.net/city-council-2017/


N/A 
 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
Dean Stelzer, Finance Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval at third reading 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
N/A 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-74

AN ORDINANCE MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE
YEAR 2018 AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Delaware, State of Ohio:

SECTION 1.  That from and out of the balances in the various funds of the City
of Delaware, and from money anticipated to be received into said funds, there are hereby 
appropriated the following sums for use by the various departments of the City in 
performance of their functions and activities during the year ending December 31, 2018.

GENERAL FUND
CITY COUNCIL

Personnel 132,747       
Other 222,126       

CITY MANAGER
Personnel 597,466       

Other 89,090         
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

Personnel 223,235       

Other 104,546       
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Personnel 205,630       

Other 185,669       
LEGAL AFFAIRS/PROSECUTOR

Personnel 727,328       

Other 66,565         
FINANCE

Personnel 1,217,890    

Other 703,783       
GENERAL ADMINISTRATION

Other 5,303,700    

RISK MANAGEMENT
Other 343,000       

POLICE
Personnel 7,891,689    

Other 852,374       

PLANNING
Personnel 1,008,109    

Other 153,665       
ENGINEERING

Personnel 957,748       

Other 797,673       
MUNICIPAL BUILDINGS

Personnel 149,476       

Other 360,214       
TOTAL GENERAL FUND 22,293,723 

STREET MAINTENANCE & REPAIR
Administration

Personnel 689,730       

Other 210,556       
Street Maintenance

Personnel 663,735       
Other 732,517       

Traffic Division
Personnel 374,329       

Other 348,219       
TOTAL STREET MAINTENANCE 3,019,086 



STATE HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENT 100,000         

LICENSE FEE FUND 550,000         
  

STORM SEWER FUND  
Operations

Personnel 227,917       
Other 286,264       

Projects
Other 952,000       

TOTAL STORM SEWER 1,466,181     

PARKS & RECREATION FUND
Park Maintenance

Personnel 790,704       

Other 291,236       
Recreation

Other 198,699       
Urban Forestry

Personnel 79,191         

Other 62,538         
TOTAL PARKS & RECREATION 1,422,368     

CEMETERY FUND
Personnel 190,445       

Other 137,512       
TOTAL CEMETERY FUND 327,957        

TREE FUND 75,000           

AIRPORT OPERATIONS FUND
Personnel 193,840       

Other 597,899       
TOTAL AIRPORT OPERATIONS FUND 791,739         

AIRPORT 2000 T-HANGAR FUND -                 

FIRE/EMS OPERATINS FUND
Personnel 8,452,313    

Other 3,546,687    
TOTAL FIRE/EMS OPERATIONS FUND 11,999,000   

MUNICIPAL COURT
 Judicial  

Personnel 1,403,326    
Other 70,500         

 Clerk of Courts
Personnel 1,232,920    
Other 84,900         

TOTAL MUNICIPAL COURT 2,791,646      

RECREATION CENTER INCOME TAX 1,574,836      

SKY CLIMBER/V&P HYDRAULICS TIF FUND 70,000           

MILL RUN TIF FUND 170,000         

IDIAM FUND 24,000           

DRUG ENFORCEMENT FUND 58,000           

INDIGENT ALCOHOL TREATMENT FUND 100,000         



OMVI ENFORCEMENT & EDUCATION FUND 5,562             

POLICE JUDGMENT FUND 115,000         

PARKS EXACTION FEE FUND 168,000         

COMPUTER LEGAL RESEARCH FUND 311,494         

COURT SPECIAL PROJECTS FUND 475,722         

COURT PROBATION SERVICES FUND 283,700         

POLICE DISABILITY PENSION FUND 224,300         

FIRE DISABILITY PENSION FUND 224,300         

COMMUNITY PROMOTION FUND 107,530         

REVOLVING LOAN FUND 124,000         

GENERAL BOND RETIREMENT FUND 2,067,073      

PARK IMPROVEMENT BOND FUND 1,305,352      

SE HIGHLAND SEWER BOND FUND 997,609         

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND 4,139,325      

POINT PROJECT CAPITAL FUND 2,358,333      

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND 319,500         

PARK IMPACT FEE FUND 587,500         

POLICE IMPACT FEE FUND 60,099           

FIRE IMPACT FEE FUND 100,000         

MUNICIPAL IMPACT FEE IMPROVEMENT FUND 131,816         

GLENN ROAD SOUTH CONSTRUCTION FUND 10,801,300    

GLENN ROAD NORTH CONSTRUCTION FUND 124,895         

GLENN ROAD TIF FUND 1,784,282      

GOLF COURSE FUND
Personnel 150,364       

Other 64,558         
TOTAL GOLF COURSE FUND 214,922        

PARKING LOT FUND 52,800           

WATER FUND
Administration

Personnel 275,707       

Other 3,067,530    
Treatment

Personnel 836,864       

Other 1,187,900    
Distribution

Personnel 585,072       

Other 398,327       
TOTAL WATER FUND 6,351,400     



WATER CONSTRUCTION FUND 2,027,728     

WATER CAPACITY FEE FUND 3,217,108     

WATER CUSTOMER DEPOSIT FUND 32,000           

SEWER FUND
Administration

Personnel 228,123       

Other 4,063,113    
Treatment

Personnel 876,634       
Other 1,104,284    

Maintenance
Personnel 393,022       

Other 333,523       
TOTAL SEWER FUND 6,998,699     

SEWER CONSTRUCTION FUND 3,019,003      
 

SEWER CAPACITY FEE FUND 4,189,913     

SE HIGHLAND SEWER FUND 997,609         
 

REFUSE FUND
Administration

Other 2,269,445    
Refuse Collection

Personnel 717,440       

Other 1,708,614    
Recycling Collection

Personnel 444,253       
Other 160,390       

TOTAL REFUSE FUND 5,300,142      

GARAGE ROTARY FUND   
Personnel 309,002       

Other 345,491       
TOTAL GARAGE ROTARY FUND 654,493         

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ROTARY FUND   
Staff Support  

Personnel 419,857       

Other 82,071         
System Support  

Other 513,170       
GIS Operations  

Personnel 89,495         

Other 60,736         
TOTAL IT ROTARY FUND 1,165,329      

SELF INSURANCE FUND 5,794,700      
 

WORKERS COMPENSATION RESERVE FUND 560,000        

FIRE DONATION FUND 6,000             

PARKS DONATION FUND 6,315             

POLICE DONATION FUND 7,000             

MAYOR'S DONATION FUND 2,800             

PROJECT TRUST FUND 10,000           
 

UNCLAIMED FUNDS TRUST FUND 8,000            

UNCLAIMED FUNDS COURT FUND 2,500             



 
DEVELOPMENT RESERVE FUND 50,000          

JEDD INCOME TAX FUND 275,000         

CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE FUND 2,000             

STATE HIGHWAY PATROL FUND 75,000           

STATE BUILDING PERMIT FEE FUND 15,000           

   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS - ALL FUNDS 114,685,689  

SECTION 2.  That the Finance Director is hereby authorized to make payment from any
of the foregoing appropriations to the extent of the amounts contained in the respective
appropriations whenever claims, duly approved by the officer authorized by law to approve such
claims, are presented.

SECTION 3.  That the Finance Director is hereby authorized and empowered to make
necessary changes which are not in conflict with this ordinance within a given appropriation to
carry out the functions of the City.  No changes to the total amount of a departmental or fund
appropriation may be made without the legislative action of the City Council.

SECTION 4.  That any sums which shall be expended from the above appropriation and
which are a proper charge against any other department, or against any person, firm or corporation,
shall, if repaid within the period covered by such appropriation, be credited to the fund from which
such payment was made.

SECTION 5.  In accordance with Ohio Revised Code Sections 5705.14, 5705.15, 
and 5705.16 the Finance Director is hereby authorized to make the interfund transfers
identified in the 2018 Budget Detail presented to, and approved by, City Council as part of 
the 2018 Budget adoption process.

SECTION 6.  That the Clerk of Council is directed to certify a copy of this ordinance to
the Budget Commission of Delaware County.

SECTION 7. Emergency Clause.  That this ordinance is hereby declared to be an
emergency measure necessary to provide for the public peace, safety, health and welfare of the
City, and further to provide lawful appropriations available for expenditure by January 1, 2018, and
as such will be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage.

VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE: Yeas ____ Nays ____

PASSED: ________________, 2017 Yeas ____ Nays ____

ATTEST:
Clerk Mayor



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  13    DATE: 11/27/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-75    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2017 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE 
TO PROVIDE FUNDING FOR PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR 
THE POINT RAILROAD BRIDGE REPLACEMENT PROJECT (DEL-36-11.03), 
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This project will replace the Norfolk Southern railroad bridge over US 36/SR 37 
and widening this route to two lanes in each direction. Additional through and 
turn lanes will also be constructed at the 36/37 - SR 521 intersection.  Bike 
and pedestrian mobility will be enhanced through the project area by 
constructing new shared use paths from “The Point” to 521 and Mill Run 
Crossing.  
 
The City is preparing to enter an Agreement with Columbus-based Gannett 
Fleming, the engineering firm selected to design the project. Gannet Fleming 
will also have sub-consultants working for them in order to manage the large 
number of complex tasks to be undertaken with this project.  The initial 
Agreement with cover the preliminary engineering phase of the project (and all 
associated sub-consultant efforts).   
 
The project will involve an enormous amount of coordination, paperwork, and 
submittals to Norfolk Southern railroad, who owns the bridge.  The time 
required to complete railroad coordination will dictate whether or not the 



project schedule stays on schedule.  Therefore, it is essential that the project 
team minimize all other inefficiencies and stay ahead of schedule on all non-
railroad related tasks.   
 
The Engineering Agreements for the project will be done in parts, for two main 
reasons.  First, there are too many unknowns regarding the bridge type, size, 
and alignment.  This information will be determined as the work is completed 
under Part 1 of the Agreement.  These unknowns at this time prevent the 
project team from writing an accurate scope of detailed design.  Secondly, the 
project team will save valuable time by concurrently drafting and reviewing 
Part 2 of the Agreement as Part 1 work is wrapping up.  The project schedule 
shows Part 2 of the design Agreement being executed this time next year.  
 
The fee for Part 1 has been calculated based on an estimated number of hours 
assigned to each task.  There are roughly 50 major tasks in Part 1 of the 
Agreement and the initial fee assigned is $984,898 including “if-authorized” 
tasks.  The City will pay Gannett Fleming directly upon receipt of monthly 
invoices.  The Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) will reimburse the 
City for 90% of these monthly expenditures.  The current estimate to complete 
all phases of design is $3,333,333 with 90% of design expenditures to be 
reimbursed by ODOT. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
An appropriation for this consulting design work was not included in the 2017 
appropriations ordinance.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The current CIP allocated $3.3M in 2018 for design expenditures.  At the time 
the CIP was prepared, the strategic plan to phase the design work was not yet 
known. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E. – Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval at First Reading 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
The Point Executive Scope of Services – Part 1 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-75 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A NEW CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT FUND AND SUPPLEMENTING THE 
2017 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE 
FUNDING FOR PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING  
SERVICES FOR THE POINT RAILROAD BRIDGE 
REPLACEMENT PROJECT (DEL-36-11.03), AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has programmed the replacement of The Point 

railroad bridge overpass, including associated roadway and multi-use path 
improvements; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City requires assistance from a qualified team of 

engineering consultants to prepare preliminary engineering plans and analysis 
for this magnitude of a project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City will pay the consultants directly for the preliminary 

engineering work; and  
 
 WHEREAS,  the City will be reimbursed for 90 percent of these 

expenditures by the Ohio Department of Transportation; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City has evaluated proposals received from engineering 

firms and made recommendation to enter into agreement for preliminary 
engineering services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the cost of providing these services was not included in the 

2017 appropriations ordinance; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City intends to create a separate capital improvement fund 

to track revenues and expenditures of this multi-year project; and 
 
WHEREAS, a supplemental appropriation will be necessary to commence 

the engineering work in 2017 in order to keep the project on schedule. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1.   That the Finance Director is hereby authorized to establish 
the following new fund within the Chart of Accounts for the City: 

 
 Point Project Capital Fund (Fund 415) 
 



SECTION 2. That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 
balance of the Point Project Capital Fund $984,898 increasing the following 
account: 

 
Professional Services (415-4150-5230) $984,898 
 
SECTION 3. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.  
 
 SECTION 4.  EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  That this ordinance is hereby 
declared to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public peace, 
safety, health and welfare of the City and for the further reason to provide for 
the timely review of development plans and for the continued utilization of 
construction inspection services, and as such will be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its passage. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE:  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



1 
 

The Point Executive Scope of Services for Part 1 

(Submitted with Cost Proposal on October 26, 2017) 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Point project will be executed through a multi-part contract. Part 1 includes preliminary 
engineering and environmental tasks that are performed during what is called the Alternatives 
Evaluation Report (AER) phase of ODOT’s Project Development Process (PDP).  The Point project 
is required to follow the PDP since federal funds are being used by the project.  Part 1 will 
conclude with an accepted rail bridge and track alignment design, preliminary engineering plans 
for the project, aesthetic concepts, and public feedback through various engagement efforts 
(see tasks 2.1.A.J and 2.6A for stakeholder/public involvement approach).  The completion of 
Part 1 will also allow the consultant team to develop a scope for Part 2, which will include all 
environmental documentation, construction plans, and right-of-way plans.  Part 3 includes pre-
bid activities and on-going construction services.   

2. CONSULTANT TEAM 
The consultant team is comprised of the following members and their respective roles.  

Gannett 
Fleming (GF) 

Shane 
Campbell 

Lead designer of rail bridge, roadway, drainage, public 
involvement, utilities, and oversight of all sub-consultants 

HDR Phil Fry Lead designer of rail track, lighting, geotechnical 
engineering, and traffic control 

EMH&T  Ed Kagel Topographic survey & basemapping, environmental tasks, 
and graphic design for aesthetics  

NEAS Enoch 
Chipukaizer 

Subsurface Utility Engineering (SUE) Levels A & B and 
geotechnical drilling & testing.  

Lawhon 
Associates (LA) 

Chantil Milam Noise analysis 

 

3. PROJECT SCHEDULE 

 
Contract Part              1         |                                      2                                |               3 

Timeline             2017|2018|       2019     |        2020         |     2021       | 2022|2023|2024 



2 
 

4. PROJECT LIMITS*  

 
* Limits on East Central Ave may vary depending other project funding and programming 

 



3 
 

5. CONSOLIDATED SCOPE OF SERVICES 
Instead of the proposed scope from each consultant member being scattered throughout the 
traditional proposal template, we have extracted the scope of all team members and combined 
them in a consolidated form as contained below. The PDP task listing and proposed scope to be 
completed by each consultant team member are described next to the color coded consultant 
abbreviation.  The consolidated scope listed below is for informational purposes and has no 
contractual binding.  Contractual scope of services is based on what is enclosed in the signed 
consultant’s proposal, not what is summarized below.   

 

1. Planning Phase  
1.2 - Project Initiation Package 
1.2.B - Conduct Field Review (walk through) 

GF: GF will have the Project Manager, Lead Structural, Roadway and Public Involvement staff 
participate in this field meeting with City staff.   

HDR: HDR will attend a field review.  The field review will be attended by the Project Manager 
and Track Design engineer.  A written summary will be provided to Gannett Fleming.    

1.2.C.C - Identify Environmental Issues 

GF: See EMH&T cost proposal.  GF to review work product. 

EMH&T: EMH&T will perform a preliminary review of the project area to identify potential 
environmental constraints to be considered throughout the alternatives evaluation phase of the 
project.  Included will be a cursory review of information made available through secondary 
literature sources such as the USFWS, ODNR, FEMA, and ODOT’s Transportation Information 
Mapping System (TIMS) and Regulated Materials Review (RMR) mapping portals.  The results of 
this review will be summarized in a Memorandum to be included as a supplement to the 
Alternatives Evaluation Report (AER). 

1.2.D - Project Initiation Package Preparation and  Submittal 

GF: Since this is an LPA project, a formal PIP will not be prepared.  Minutes documenting the 
field review will developed and distributed. 

HDR: HDR will identify railroad track, roadway lighting, and traffic signal, sign, and pavement 
marking design issues based upon the field review and other available sources of information.  
Since this is an LPA project, a formal PIP will not be prepared.  Minutes documenting the field 
review will be developed and distributed.   

 
 



4 
 

1.3 - Existing Data, Research and Analysis 
1.3.H - Develop Purpose & Need 

GF: See EMH&T's cost proposal.  GF to review. 

EMH&T: EMH&T will develop the project’s DRAFT Purpose & Need Statement based on 
technical studies and analyses completed during the planning phase of the project.  As required, 
the P&N will be developed in accordance to ODOT’s latest P&N Statement guidelines and 
provide the basis against which project alternatives will be evaluated.  It is assumed that an 
electronic copy of the Draft P&N Statement will be provided to ODOT for review via EnviroNet. 
 

1.4 - Stakeholder Involvement and Public Involvement Plan 
1.4A - Public Involvement Plan 

GF: See EMH&T's cost proposal.  GF to review work product. 

EMH&T: EMH&T will develop a Public Involvement Plan (PIP) in accordance with the most 
recent version of ODOT-OES’s Public Involvement (PI) Manual. The PIP will outline the proposed 
steering committee, stakeholder and public involvement/coordination activities to be 
implemented throughout project development.  For the purpose of this proposal it is assumed 
that up to two (2) coordination meetings/conference calls with Gannett Fleming and the City will 
be required.  An electronic copy of the Draft PIP will be provided to the City and ODOT for 
review.  It is assumed that the PIP will be an “active” document that will be updated throughout 
project development. 
 

1.5 - Project Management  
GF: 
1.5.A – Meetings 

Steering committee, stakeholder, property owner, railroad, and PI meetings are included in other 
tasks.  Task 1.5.A includes the following meetings:  

- internal meetings with design team: 1 teleconference / month x 12 months x 4 GF staff = 48 
hrs 

- 8 misc. meetings (issue specific, council mtgs, quarterly mtgs at ODOT, etc.) with City of 
Delaware not defined elsewhere: 8 mtgs x 2 GF staff x 4 hrs/mtg = 64 hrs   

1.5.B - General Oversight 

12 hrs/month x 12 months = 144 hrs 

1.5.C - Project Set Up 

24 hrs for project setup including Project Execution Plan, subconsultant agreements, etc. 



5 
 

HDR: 
HDR will attend 12 internal team meetings via Skype.  The HDR project Manager will attend in 
person.  The Geotechnical Lead, the RR Bridge Review Lead, the RR track Lead and Traffic / 
Lighting Lead will attend these meetings via conference call or Skype.  The HDR project Manager 
will perform project set-up, provide general oversight, and coordination with the HDR staff and 
Gannett Fleming’s team.   

EMH&T:  
A representative from EMH&T will participate in one (1) Project Kick-off Meeting, up to three (3) 
project Steering Committee meetings, and up to twelve (12) monthly internal project progress 
meetings.  For the purpose of this proposal it is assumed that the Steering Committee meeting 
will occur at the City of Delaware and that each monthly internal progress meeting will be 
conducted via conference call/Web-Ex. Hours have been included to cover the effort associated 
with routine Project Management and coordination activities. 
 
2 - Preliminary Engineering Phase 
2.1 - Develop Preliminary Alternatives 
2.1.A.J - Stakeholder Public Involvement 

GF: 
GF's stakeholder plan includes the following approach:   

Steering Committee – GF will work with the City to develop a steering committee that will guide 
the project on a technical level. This group will primarily consists of technical decision makers 
from the appropriate departments within the City, ODOT, County and MORPC. This group will 
meet every other month for a total of 6 meetings and receive regular project updates from the 
project team.  GF anticipates 3 staff members at each meeting: 6 mtgs x 3 GF staff x 4 hrs/mtg = 
72 hrs 

Stakeholder group – GF will work with the City to develop a stakeholder group. This group will 
be a mix of technical and non-technical members such as the fire department, major businesses, 
etc. that have an interest in how the project develops or can assist with getting the facts about 
the project out to their networks. This group will meet quarterly (4 meetings) for general 
progress updates. It is suggested that this group does not contain residential property owners.  
GF anticipates 2 staff members at each meeting: 4 mtgs x 3 GF staff x 4 hrs/mtg = 48 hrs 

Property Owners group – This will be a list of the likely impacted property owners. The GF team 
will meet with them to discuss access management and vehicle circulation. We are budgeting 
for 2 days of meetings either on site or at the City Engineer’s office.  GF anticipates 2 staff 
members at these meetings: 2 days x 2 GF staff x 8 hrs/day = 32 hrs 



6 
 

Residential property owners – While we will not refuse any requests to discuss the project with 
residential property owners, actively engaging them at this point in the process as part of a 
committee for example is premature. The reason being the railroad will be selecting the 
alignment of the bridge. If property owners are brought into the process too early they will have 
a false sense of being able to control the alignment selection and if the railroad makes a 
decision they do not agree with then there will be a backlash on the City that the process was all 
for show. There will be an eastside versus westside bias. In GF’s opinion it is better to let the 
railroad make its decision then bring the impacted group into the process as we work through 
their options and needs. Until then our message will be that we are studying multiple 
alignments east and west and will have more information to share once the railroad has 
weighed in. We will be open and honest when asked about the status or progress of the project. 
We have included minimal effort in the budget to account for these types of conversations or 
requests for information. Effort: 16 hours 

Website communication – GF will assist the City with its project website communication through 
the provision of content as needed and through documenting and responding to comments 
received through the website.  Effort: 24 hrs 

Reserve – GF will serve as an on-call extension of City staff to provide additional as-needed 
assistance to respond to questions/comments.  Effort: 80 hrs 

 

HDR: 

HDR’s project manager will attend a total of ten meetings.     

 Steering committee (technical project progress meetings) – 6 meetings. 
 Stakeholder meetings (broader focused group) – 4 meetings.   

 

EMH&T 
A representative from EMH&T will participate in up to four (4) project Stakeholder Committee 
meetings to address/discuss the preliminary environmental findings and aesthetics.  EMH&T 
understands Gannett Fleming will prepare the handouts and materials for the Stakeholder 
meetings, and EMH&T will provide limited input and document reviews as needed.  It is 
assumed that each Stakeholder meeting will be held in the City of Delaware and that Gannett 
Fleming will be responsible for producing (i.e. printing and plotting) all Stakeholder materials.      
 

 
 
 



7 
 

2.2 - Perform Environmental Field Studies 
2.2.G - Noise Analysis 

GF: See Lawhon's Cost Proposal.  Effort by GF to review work product. 

L&A 

Noise Red Flag Summary 
Task includes the comparison of the no-build (existing conditions), proposed roadway and 
railroad bridge alternatives as developed under Part 1 of the design contract to estimate 
potential impacts and the possibility of noise abatement.  Lawhon will provide a written 
summary to be included as part of a Red Flag analysis report to be completed by EMH&T.   
Gannett Fleming will provide L&A with the appropriate information associated with the 
alternatives to be considered as part of the red flag summary.   

 
This task will not provide a separate deliverable to ODOT and does not include modeling.  
It is our understanding that once a Preferred Alternative is selected, a separate scope and 
fee will be provided for the Noise Analysis.  In addition, no Air Quality assessment will be 
included as part of this task.  Air Quality (Quantitative MSAT) will be conducted under a 
separate contract part.   
 
 

2.3 - AER Design 
2.3.A - Field Survey and Aerial Mapping 
GF: 
2.3.A.A - Project Control, Benchmarks, and  Reference Points 

See EMH&T proposal. 

2.3.A.B - Monumentation recovery 

See EMH&T proposal. 

2.3.A.C - Base Mapping (incl. field verify.) 

Effort by GF included for subconsultant coordination, verification of basemapping, and GF staff 
to be onsite during rail survey while flagging. 

2.3.A.F - Establish property lines, tax id, &  ownerships on base map 

See EMH&T proposal. 

2.3.A.G - Property Owner Notification 

GF will develop notification letter, property owner addresses, and mail letter on behalf of the 
City of Delaware. 



8 
 

EMH&T: 
Field survey efforts (inclusive of field and office processing) are summarized on the attached 
summary table (referencing the ODOT Fee Guidance) based on the limits requested by Gannett 
Fleming (including locating soil boring locations).  Please note, the table provides the 
recommended fee guidance value and the EMH&T suggested rate, often less than what the 
Department recommends.  The efficiency and experience of EMH&T survey operations provides 
this reduced rate/savings to the City of Delaware.  Detailed drainage / hydraulic survey for the US 
36/37 culvert crossing is not included in the fee proposal.  The railroad survey will require 
additional resources to clear 50 foot cross sections of existing brush to accommodate the detailed 
topographic survey required 1000 feet north and south of the existing bridge (along the centerline 
of the NS tracks).  The rail survey also includes time to survey the existing spur track as requested 
by Gannett Fleming.  Direct costs (mileage and survey supplies) are included for 17 trips to the 
project site (field control and field survey).  The daily survey supply charge accommodates field 
paint, lathes, stakes, clearing equipment, and survey control materials (pins, caps, concrete, etc) 
to perform the field survey work.   

As a supplement to the field topo for the project, elevations are required for the existing bridge.  
Since the bridge is being fully replaced, a formal bridge survey is not necessary, although the 
following features will be field located: 

o Break points of wingwalls 
o Limits of Concrete Pier Protection 
o Centerline of Pier columns (atop the concrete pier protection) 
o Outside and Inside face of superstructure parapet (at start/end of bridge and any 

joints in the parapet) 
o Front face of Abutments 
o Bottom of existing girders at East and West ends of the bridge; at Midpoint and 

ends of spans 
 

The time to accommodate the above survey work is included in Task 2.3.A. 
 
All survey basemap deliverables and CADD standards will follow the most current Design 
Reference Resource Center (DRRC) ODOT CADD Standards, Location and Design Manual Volume 
III, and the ODOT Survey and Mapping Specifications specific to MicroStation and GEOPAK.  

 
2.3.B – Roadway 
GF: 2.3.B.A - Design Criteria 

Design criteria for US-36/37, SR-521, and Bowtown Road will be developed summarizing ODOT 
and City of Delaware requirements. 



9 
 

GF: 2.3.B.B - Conceptual Typical Sections 

Proposed preliminary typical sections for US-36, US-37, US-36/37 (divided and undivided), SR-
521, and Bowtown Road will be prepared.  Existing typical sections will not be prepared as part 
of the AER phase. 

GF: 2.3.B.C - Horizontal Alignment and Vertical Profile  - Mainline 

Horizontal alignment will be established along US-36, US-37, SR-521, and Bowtown Road within 
the project limits.  Multiple horizontal alignment alternatives are not anticipated.  The intent will 
be to maintain the existing centerline of R/W to the maximum extent.  As noted in Task 2.5.D.A, 
four (4) rail bridge span arrangements will be evaluated, of which includes three permanent 
bridge span arrangements.  Therefore, three (3) vertical alignments will be prepared to help 
develop costs and drainage considerations for each of the bridge alternatives.  Approximately 15 
P&P sheets (at 20-scale) will be developed for the noted roads above and only include the final 
vertical profile established for the preferred rail bridge alternative. 

GF: 2.3.B.F - Conceptual cross sections 

In order to establish preliminary construction limits and assist in identifying R/W impacts, 
preliminary cross sections will be developed along US-36, US-37, SR-521. A total of 7,000 feet of 
linear roadway is anticipated based on the initial project limits, resulting in 140 sections at 50' 
spacing. No cross sections are anticipated along Bowtown Road. Cross sections will not be 
shown on sheets.   

GF: 2.3.B.H - Analyze Drive locations 

This task will evaluate applying access management principles and use the noted drive 
improvements shown in the Safety Study as an initial starting point.  Drives not impacted within 
the project limits will not be preliminarily designed.   

GF: 2.3.B.I - Identify Construction Limits 

Preliminary construction limits will be developed based on preliminary cross sections, potential 
utility relocations, access management, and contractor staging/access. 

GF: 2.3.B.J - Preliminary Pavement Design 

Preliminary pavement design will be developed for flexible, rigid, and composite build-ups. 

 
2.3.C - Drainage 
GF: 2.3.C.C - Hydraulically size all major storm sewer  trunk lines 

The proposed storm trunk line that conveys surface water collected around the roadway under 
the railroad bridge will be sized using ODOT's CDSS.  The intent of this exercise is to make sure 
adequate clearance above the pipe and positive drainage can be maintined to the outfall. No 
other drainage calcs will be peformed, with the exception of Central Ave.  As per the city, the 



10 
 

existing/proposed drainage collection and conveyance system will be evaluated at a preliminary 
level to help identify deficiencies or design considerations moving forward.  All storm trunk lines 
within the project limits will be shown schematically on the roadway plan sheets for the 
preferred AER deliverable.  No storm profiles will be generated.  As requested by the City, 
provision to evaluate the existing/proposed drainage collection and conveyance system along 
Central Ave at a preliminary level is included to help identify deficiencies or design 
considerations moving forward.   

GF: 2.3.C.D- Perform preliminary hydraulic analysis  for culverts 

No culvert calcs will be performed. 

GF: 2.3.C.E- Conceptual BMP 

A preliminary evaluation of BMPs will be completed based on the anticipated EDA.  ODOT's L&D 
Volume 2 will be followed. 

 
2.3.D - Railroad Track  
2.3.D.A - Railroad Track - Plan and Profile 

GF: See HDR’s cost proposal.  GF’s effort includes hours for oversight and coordination of 
preliminary railroad alignments and profiles.  

HDR: HDR will develop three track alternatives consistent with the two permanent bridge and 
single temporary bridge location alternatives.  The anticipated alternatives to be evaluated are: 

 to shift final tracks to the east side of the existing tracks, with two final Track 1 
profiles at one final bridge location one “raised” and one “near existing”;   

 to temporarily shift both tracks to the west of the existing tracks so that the final 
track and bridge return to the existing alignment after construction, with two Track 1 
profiles, one temporary (near existing) and one permanent (raised);  and  

 to temporarily shift both tracks to the west of the existing tracks so that the final 
track and bridge return to the existing alignment after construction, with two Track 1 
profiles, one temporary (lowered) and one permanent (near existing) 

The Track 2 profile is assumed to be similar to the Track 1 profile and will be deferred to final 
design.  The existing topographical survey, TIN, SUE Level B (underground and overhead), 
and proposed roadway, and other project relevant base map dgn and gpk files will be 
provided by Gannett Fleming.  The limits of proposed temporary or permanent track 
relocation are 2,500 feet north and south of the existing bridge crossing over US-36 / SR-
37.  The deliverables are as follows: 

 Concept Plan and Profile Sheets,  
o 3 Alternatives plus the No Build / Existing Condition;  
o Limits:  3000 feet Track shift plus 1000 feet each end, 5000 feet total;   



11 
 

o (1"= 40 feet horizontal and 1"= 10 feet vertical); 
o Profile elevations, vertical curves and grades will be provided for the two profiles 

however graphical presentation may be limited to one profile;   
o The toe of slope line for each profile will be shown in plan view for both 

profiles;      
o 3 sheets each alternative, 12 sheets total;   

Each sheet will be in a typical ODOT plan sheet format and provided in dgn and pdf file 
format.   

 

2.3.D.B - Railroad Track - Cross Section 

GF: See HDR’s cost proposal.  GF’s effort includes hours for oversight and coordination of 
preliminary railroad cross sections. 

HDR: From the proposed plan and profiles HDR will develop three separate cross section base 
maps, one for each proposed alternative.  Cross Sections will be cut at a 1:1 scale and 50 feet 
intervals for the embankment quantities.  The sheets will show a minimum of 20 feet beyond the 
existing railroad right-of-way for both sides of the railroad.  The existing right-of-way line will be 
shown on the sheets.  The concept embankment widening sections will show a proposed 2:1 
slope extending to the existing ground with no further development of drainage or other 
considerations.  Once a preferred alternative is selected proposed preliminary drainage and 
existing utilities will be added to the preferred alternative cross sections and preliminary cross 
section sheets will be prepared accordingly.           

 Concept Cross Section Sheets,  
o 3 Alternatives; 
o Selected / Critical Cross Sections only; 
o 6 Cross sections for each alternative;    
o (1"= 10 feet horizontal and 1"= 10 feet vertical); 
o 2 sheets each alternative; 6 sheets total.   

 Preliminary Cross Section Sheets,  
o 1 Alternative – Preferred; 
o Selected / Critical Cross Sections only; with existing utilities and proposed 

preliminary ditches;   
o 6 Cross sections for each alternative;    
o (1"= 10 feet horizontal and 1"= 10 feet vertical); 
o 2 sheets total.   

Each sheet will be in a typical ODOT plan sheet format and provided in dgn and pdf file format.   

 

 



12 
 

2.3.D.C - Railroad Track - Misc. 

GF: See HDR’s cost proposal.  GF’s effort includes hours for oversight and coordination of 
preliminary railroad typical sections and potential drainage concerns. 

HDR: HDR will develop details for the preferred alternative to include typical sections and a rail 
yard site plan.  The typical section sheets will include proposed tangent and curved sections on 
one sheet and concept embankment widening details which will show the anticipated benching, 
toe of slope berm and proposed ditch section.  Additionally, proposed preliminary ditch bottom 
location with flow arrows and Concept BMP locations will be added to the plan view.  The 
ditches will be designed according to the ODOT Location and Design Manual, Volume 2.  Also, 
there is an existing railroad yard located to the west of the tracks and south of US-36 the impact 
of the preferred alternative on this existing yard will be of noteworthiness to NS, therefore a 
separate site plan will be provided for the preferred alternative, a track shift on the east side will 
not impact the rail yard.       

The deliverables are as follows: 

 Preliminary Typical Section Sheets,  
o 1 Alternative;  Scale: TBD; 2 Sheets;       

 Existing Railroad Yard Site Plan,  
2 Alternative;  Scale: TBD; 2 Sheets;    

Each sheet will be in a typical ODOT plan sheet format and provided in dgn and pdf file format.   

The southern track limit is located near an existing culvert conveying Mill Run, a non-FEMA 
Flood Zone and tributary to the Olentangy River under the NS railroad track since it is near the 
limit a hydraulic analysis or culvert detail are not included in this scope of work.  Additionally, 
super-elevation calculation / table plan sheets are excluded.   

 

2.3.D.D - Review of Preliminary Structures 

GF: See HDR’s cost proposal.  GF’s effort includes one review session to coordinate preliminary 
structures and preliminary track alignments. 

HDR: After Gannett Fleming completes their preliminary design HDR will provide an 
independent railroad bridge review of Gannett Fleming’s design, plans, and cost estimate. The 
review will focus on constructability and compliance with NS standards and specifications. This 
task is a one time review of the preferred alternative, with follow up responses to close out 
comments, which will take place before submitting the preliminary plans to NS for their official 
review. The deliverable for this task is HDR’s review comments in pdf form. The RR Bridge 
Review Lead will attend a review meeting with Gannett Fleming. 

 



13 
 

2.3.E - Signals & ITS 
2.3.E.A - Signal Warrant Analysis 

GF: See HDR's cost proposal. 

HDR: The proposed roadway improvements will impact two existing signalized 
intersections.  HDR will complete signal warrant analysis for the intersections of: 

 US-36 (Williams Street) & SR-37 convergence / The Point;   
 US-36 / SR-37 (Sunbury Rd) at SR-521 (Kilbourne Rd and Mill Run Crossing) 

The City of Delaware will provide the certified traffic data which is anticipated to include the 
current, opening and design year ADT’s, Turning Movements Counts (AM and PM Peak Hour 
Volumes), directional distribution, K-factor, Percent Trucks,  growth factors, and etc. for each 
approach of each intersection.       

 

2.3.E.C - Traffic Misc.: 

GF: See HDR's cost proposal. 

HDR: HDR will perform a signalized intersection capacity / operational analysis in Synchro for 
the following intersections:   

 US-36 (Williams Street) & SR-37 (Central Avenue) and East Point Crossing;      
 US-36 / SR-37 (Sunbury Rd) at SR-521 (Kilbourne Rd and Mill Run Crossing) 

The focal point of this analysis will be to determine the level of service and the turn lane 
lengths.  For the purposes of this analysis it is assumed that the SR37 (Central Avenue) EB to East 
Point Crossing SB movement will have satisfactory intersection geometry to allow this 
movement to be perpetuated in the proposed design and additional adjacent intersection 
turning movement counts will not be required.  It is noted however that the issue of 
accommodating the movement appears to be more an intersection geometry issue depending 
upon whether or not a WB-62 is required for both EB left turn lanes.  It is anticipated that there 
will be safety and operational benefits if the trucks were restricted to the outer left turn lane due 
to the wider turns and slower acceleration.    

HDR will also discuss with the City and ODOT to evaluate, summarize, and determine the 
Proprietary Bid Justification and Alternate Bid Considerations for Signal Equipment and Lighting 
Equipment.  

 

2.3.E.D - ITS (Traffic Surveillance Impact Analysis) 

GF: See HDR's cost proposal. 



14 
 

HDR: HDR will coordinate with City and ODOT on existing or planned ITS or signalization 
projects that may impact this project.   

 

2.3.F.B – MOTAA 
2.3.F.C - Conceptual MOT Plan (Without  MOTAA) 

GF: Preliminary typical sections and phasing sheets for the MOT at the railroad crossing will be 
prepared to verify that two lanes of traffic remain open at all times.  A  constructability review by 
GF Construction Management staff will also be complete given the complexities, constraints, 
and requirements by NS. 

 
2.3.G – Utilities 
2.3.G.A - Utility Coordination and Documentation 

GF: District 6 has a thorough utility process that GF will follow.  Utility companies will be 
identified along with assessing potential conflicts, utility easements, responsibilities, and 
relocation costs.  All correspondence and documentation will follow ODOT's templates and 
requried process.  The AER plans will be sent to utility companies for review. 

2.3.G.B - Subsurface Utility Engineering 

GF: See NEAS cost proposal.  GF has included effort to coordinate and review work product 
from NEAS. 

NEAS: The limits of the SUE Level B survey are within the roadway easement/right of way – East 
Central Ave from Channing Street to railroad; East Williams St from Foley Street to railroad; US 
36/37 from railroad to SR 521; SR 521 from US 36/37 to Bowtown Road (approx. 6800 feet of 
roadway); Norfolk Southern railroad 2500’ north and south of crossing of US 36/37 (5,000’ total). 

NEAS will contact OUPS/OGPUPS to request field markings and existing utility plans of 
underground utilities in the project area.  It is anticipated that there are 9 utility owners within 
the project limits.  Using 9 utilities, with 11,800 feet of combined roadway and railroad, with a 
rough estimate that 50% of the length of the project will need marked yields: 9 x 0.50 x 11, 800 
feet = 53,100 linear feet to mark. Unresponsive utilities will be contacted at least once per week 
until existing utility plans are received or the project is submitted, whichever comes first.  NEAS 
will prepare a utility contact log including utility contact information and documenting any 
communication made with each utility company.  NEAS will designate utilities not marked in 
response to the OUPS/OGPUPS tickets, survey all designated locations, and prepare base 
mapping of underground utilities to Level B in accordance with the ASCE Standard Guideline for 
the Collection and Depiction of Existing Subsurface Utility Data.  No drainage structures will be 
surveyed as part of the SUE Level B task. 



15 
 

Coordinates and locations of existing project control, set by others, will be provided to NEAS 
prior to commencement of the Level B SUE survey to facilitate SUE base mapping in the project 
coordinate system.   

 
2.3.H – Miscellaneous 
2.3.H.C - Determine potential locations for  retaining walls 

GF: Retaining walls to save the impacted properties will be preliminarily identified and located. 

2.3.H.D - Determine Lighting needs - investigate  warrants 

GF: See HDR's cost proposal.  GF effort for review and coordination. 

HDR: HDR will evaluate lighting options within the project limits, including underpass / tunnel 
lighting.  

2.3.H.E - Identify potential total take parcels 

GF: See Task 2.4.B 

2.3.H.F - Railroad Coordination 

GF: It is assumed that two meetings will be coordinated with NSRR, ODOT, and the City.  It is 
anticipated that the first meeting will present the three possible alignments and discuss the 
merits of each.  A preferred alternative will be identified after that meeting and after the second 
meeting a final type, size, and location of the railroad work will be established for the project.  
Effort includes that of meeting attendance, and that required to prepare and follow-up for those 
meetings. 

HDR: HDR will attend two meetings with NSRR, ODOT, and the City.  The HDR project Manager 
will attend in person.  The Geotechnical Lead, the RR Bridge Review Lead, and the RR track Lead 
will attend these meetings via conference call or Skype.  It is anticipated that the first meeting 
will present the three possible alignments and discuss the merits of each.  A preferred 
alternative will be identified after that meeting and after the second meeting a final type, size, 
and location of the railroad work will be established for the project.  Effort includes that of 
meeting attendance, and that required to prepare and follow-up for those meetings. 

EMH&T: EMH&T will coordinate with Norfolk Southern to obtain the Right of Entry Permit 
(ROE) required for the project.  Staff time to facilitate the application and direct costs for the 
application fee and railroad flagging operations is also included under this task.  It is understood 
that the geotechnical operations will occur simultaneously with field survey work performing 
both activities under the same ROE permit.   

2.3.H.G - Evaluate aesthetic options 



16 
 

GF: GF’s team will meet with City planning to talk about aesthetic elements they would like to 
include on the bridge to create a gateway. We will also discuss the desire for a streetscape 
package that would also reinforce the gateway feel. The two will be developed together but 
kept separate enough that either can easily be removed based on the available budget.  

We will develop 3 sketch rendering and planning level cost estimates of the bridge and 2 of the 
streetscape elements to discuss with the City before selecting one of the alternatives or a 
combination of the alternatives as a recommended alternative to show the public. 

Realistic renderings will be developed for the public meeting – 1 that focuses on the bridge and 
another that incorporates the street scape package (if both are carried through to that point).  
All renderings will be created by EMH&T as described in their write-up for Task 2.6.A. 

 
2.4 - Prepare Cost Estimates 
2.4.A - Roadway/Interchange Costs 

GF: A preliminary construction cost estimate for the preferred bridge alternative and AER plans 
will be prepared using ODOT's Estimator software.   

HDR: HDR will provide preliminary cost estimates for railroad track, roadway lighting, and traffic 
signal, signage, and pavement marking.  The intent of this estimate is to make establish a solid 
estimate for the project moving forward so the City can have a clear understanding of the 
project's current funding gap.   

 

2.4.B - Right of Way Costs 

GF: A preliminary right of way cost estimate will be prepared based on the AER construction 
limits. 

2.4.C – Utility 

GF: Utility cost estimates for compensable private utilities will be developed based on 
coordination with the owning agency. 

 
2.5 - AER Submittal and Other Studies 
2.5.A - Prepare Alternative Evaluation Report 

GF: AER will be prepared that documents history of project and develoment / decisions made 
throughout the AER phase. 

HDR: HDR will provide appropriate AER report text associated with the alternatives analysis for 
noteworthy design or cost considerations for the project moving forward for the railroad track 
design, roadway lighting, and traffic signal work.  This text will be submitted in memo format 



17 
 

and provided in WORD.doc and pdf file formats.  The geotechnical information will be provided 
in the previously mentioned reports.       

 
2.5.D – Structures 
2.5.D.A - Bridge Structure Type Study (break out each bridge separately) 

GF: Four (4) separate bridge arrangements will be preliminarily designed so that a cost 
comparison can be completed for each.  The cost comparison will be used to compare the cost 
of each configuration vs. the roadway and/or railway modifications needed to obtain the needed 
vertical underclearance.  Due to the low likelihood of acceptance by the railroad, part-width 
railroad bridge construction will not be explicitly designed.  If part-width costs are required, a 
30% premium will be added to the alternative(s) considered to have a viable part-width 
alternative. Final details of part width construction would to be determined after acceptance by 
the railroad (after the first railroad meeting). Each basic span arrangement will be similar for 
each railroad alignment alternative, so the affects of each span configuration on each alignment 
alternative can be interchangeable.  All final structures will be designed to carry three tracks.  
The effort on this line is for the plan work associated with the preliminary structure designs 
below.  The plan work will consist of a plan view of each railroad alignment which identifies 
possible bridge span configurations for each railroad alignment.  A plan and profile sheet, as 
well as superstructure typical details will be developed for the recommended alternative (after 
meeting with the railroad).  Eight (8) total sheets have been estimated.  The city of Delaware and 
ODOT will provide input on the preferred span arrangement. 

 

2.5.D.A.1 - Single Span Bridge 

GF: A single span bridge will be preliminarily designed to obtain realistic superstructure and 
substructure sizes.  A cost estimate and a superstructure depth (Top Of Rail to Bottom Of Steel) 
will be completed so that this design can be utilized in comparing the various alignment 
alternatives. This alternative is assumed to be on wall type abutments. 

 

2.5.D.A.2 - Two Span Bridge 

GF: A two span bridge will be preliminarily designed to obtain realistic superstructure and 
substructure sizes.  The two spans would not be equal since constructing a midspan pier while 
maintaining roadway traffic is not considered feasible.  A cost estimate and a superstructure 
depth (Top Of Rail to Bottom Of Steel) will be completed so that this design can be utilized in 
comparing the various alignment alternatives. This alternative is assumed to be on a wall-type 
expansion pier and either wall-type or spill-through abutments. 

 



18 
 

2.5.D.A.3 - Three Span Bridge 

GF: A three span bridge will be preliminarily designed to obtain realistic superstructure and 
substructure sizes.  The two side spans would be equal with a longer midspan sized to 
accommodate a future 5th lane.  A cost estimate and a superstructure depth (Top Of Rail to 
Bottom Of Steel) will be completed so that this design can be utilized in comparing the various 
alignment alternatives. For cost estimating purposes, this alternative will utilize the similar 
substructure sizes previously designed for the single and two span alternatives. A fixed pier 
option will also be required for this alternative. This alternative is assumed to be on wall-type 
fixed and expansion piers and either wall-type or spill-through abutments. 

 

2.5.D.A.4 - Temporary Bridge 

GF: A single span temporary bridge will be preliminarily designed.  The temporary structure will 
be assumed to be a closed timber deck superstructure capable of carrying both active NSRR 
tracks.  A cost estimate and a superstructure depth (Top Of Rail to Bottom Of Steel) will be 
completed so that this design can be utilized in comparing the various alignment alternatives.  
Turnback "chimney section" shoring associated with the temporary bridge will be included in the 
temporary bridge cost. 

 

2.5.E - Retaining wall justification 

GF: An abbreviated retaining wall justification study will be performed for properties affected by 
the preferred alternative.  Preliminary wall costs and benefits will be studied at 4 locations: 1) the 
northwest corner of a temporary alignment to maintain private property, 2) the southwest 
corner of a temporary alignment to maintain the existing railroad spur, 3) the northeast corner 
of a new east alignment to maintain the fire station, 4) the southeast corner of a new east 
alignment to maintain the private property. Retaining wall justification studies will be based 
upon recent GF railroad wall designs and auditor land valuations, with detailed designs being 
deferred until final design.  No retaining wall plans will be produced as part of the study. 
 
2.6 - Public Involvement/Coordination 
2.6.A - Public Involvement / Coordination 

GF: GF’s team will conduct one open house style public meeting in this phase of the project. 
Additional public meetings will follow in the next contract phase. 

GF’s team will prepare all needed public meeting materials and displays including handouts, 
renderings, plan and typical section displays.  



19 
 

Public comment will be received for 30 days after the meeting and the comments compiled and 
summarized for the City and ODOT’s review. 

Comment responses will be formulated with input from the City, ODOT and consultant team. 

A combined steering and stakeholder meeting will be held prior to the public meeting so that all 
involved can preview the displays and understand the messaging. This group will also meet after 
the comment period has closed to get a debrief on the meeting and comments. At this time a 
recommended alternative will either be selected or a new hybrid alternative developed. 

A public involvement summary will be developed to document the public involvement process 
and all comments received (prior to the public meeting and after). This will become part of the 
environmental document. 

HDR: HDR's project manager will attend the Public Involvement meetings.  The following is a list 
of meetings related to public involvement.  
 

 Public meeting – one open house style meeting probably 2 hours in duration plus all the 
prep.   
 

HDR will also prepare General Question / Answers and provide Specific responses to Public 
Comment on items related to the railroad track, geotechnical, traffic signal or lighting work.  This 
text will be submitted in memo format and provided in WORD.doc and pdf file formats.   

HDR will also prepare one Exhibit to show the preferred railroad track alternative.  The 
anticipated exhibit will be a colored plot, scale: 1" = 40 feet, maximum size of 3 feet x 15 feet, 
mounted on three (3 feet x 5 feet) foam boards.   

EMH&T: A representative from EMH&T will attend and participate in one (1) public open-house 
meeting.  EMH&T understands Gannett Fleming will prepare the handouts and materials for the 
public involvement events, and EMH&T will provide limited input and document reviews as 
needed.  Efforts may include reviewing draft PI meeting materials and helping prepare the Public 
Comment Summary and Responses to Public Comments document.  For the purpose of this 
proposal it is assumed that Gannett Fleming will be responsible for the printing and mailing of all 
public meeting notifications and public meeting handouts. 

Graphics/Rendering support is included for both bridge aesthetics and gateway/streetscape plans 
in the above task to accommodate a total of 120 hours for visualization assistance.  During the 
preliminary design phase, various 2D concepts will be vetted by the Design Team with the City to 
accommodate the proposed improvements.  Upon approval of the 2D layout by the City, Gannett 
Fleming will provide EMH&T with the proposed basemaps to begin the visualization efforts.  
EMH&T will utilize various graphics applications to provide 3D renderings for the proposed bridge 
and gateway/streetscape features as required.  The design software used by EMH&T will leverage 
existing CADD basemaps (DGN or ACAD) to build the 3D model, including applicable adjacent 



20 
 

structures, objects, and features – where necessary.  The perspectives provided to the City will be 
pre-approved to ensure the final deliverables achieve the expectations of the client.  The following 
hours (120) are outlined below: 

Preliminary – 4 hours coordination with Gannett Fleming/Design Team on rendering 
expectation/needs; 64 hours for exhibit preparation (16 hours per exhibit; 4 exhibits 
provided). 

Final Exhibits For PI Meeting – 4 hours coordination with Gannett Fleming/Design Team 
on final deliverables; 48 hours for final exhibit preparation (24 hours per exhibit; 2 exhibits 
provided) 

EMH&T will provide high resolution digital files to Gannett Fleming for distribution to the client 
via FTP site download.  The deliverables are understood to be static images and not video or “fly-
through” products.  If video support services are required, an “If Authorized” fee can be provided.  
It is understood that Gannett Fleming will be responsible for the high resolution printing, 
presentation boards, and hard copy deliverables to the client, if required by the City of Delaware 
or ODOT for public distribution/meetings. 

 
2.7 - Stage 1 Design 
2.7.D - Geotechnical Services 
2.7.D.A - Geotechnical Services and Report 

GF: See HDR and NEAS proposals.  GF effort included for coordination and work product review. 

HDR: HDR will provide Geotechnical Engineering services which include:  Planning, Field 
Coordination, Boring Inspection, and Geotechnical Exploration Reports (including Preparation of 
the Boring Logs, Determination of Soil and Rock Strength and Design Parameters, Development 
of the geotechnical recommendations for End Bearing Piles, Development of the geotechnical 
recommendations for Drilled Shafts Socketed into Rock, Settlement Analyses, Slope Stability 
Analyses, Downdrag Analyses for foundations supporting the railroad bridge and the associated 
retaining wall as a result of the new embankment fill, and GB-1 Pavement Subgrade Analyses.  A 
concept boring / drilling plan has been developed for this proposal and is included.  The 
deliverables will be a Structure Foundation Report, a Preliminary Subgrade Report and Soil 
Profile Sheets.  The reports and soil profile sheets will be delivered in pdf file format. 

Assumptions:       
Site reconnaissance includes review of the as-staked boring locations with respect to utilities, 
access, and obstructions.   



21 
 

1. Office Reconnaissance consists of review of readily available soil and rock information 
such as NRCS Soils reports, Geology maps and reports, Depth to Bedrock maps, and 
ODNR well logs.   

2. Right of Access Letters to be developed by others.   
3. Traffic Control to be provided by others.   
4. Utility Clearances (OUPS, OGPUPS, NSRR) to be performed by others.   
5. Obtaining necessary permits for drilling to be provided by others.   
6. Survey and staking of boring locations to be provided by others.   
7. Drilling and Laboratory Testing to be performed by others.   
8. The proposed hours for Boring Inspection are based upon drilling to take 13 business 

days assuming 1 drill rig based on an average of 50 feet of drilling per day, HDR is not 
responsible for the drilling exceeding 13 days.     

9. Geotechnical Engineering Analyses performed as part of the Geotechnical Exploration 
Reports do not include:   

a. Lpile Analyses for drilled shafts or piles;  
b. Design of the drilled shafts and rock sockets;  
c. Retaining wall analyses and design;    

10. Soil Profile Sheets will not exceed 40 sheets.        
 

NEAS: The purpose of NEAS’s geotechnical drilling and testing services is to perform a 
subsurface exploration within the planned limits of the referenced bridge, potential wall, and 
roadway to obtain sufficient data regarding the subsurface soil conditions that will serve as the 
basis for development of design and construction recommendations at these locations. 

NEAS proposes the following scope of services to achieve the above-stated purpose: 

1. Management and Coordination:  NEAS will coordinate and manage the subsurface 
exploration and laboratory testing for the proposed geotechnical drilling and testing 
services. 

2. Reconnaissance and Boring Layout:  Following the target soil boring plan and drilling 
schedule provided by the Project Geotechnical Engineer, NEAS will mobilize to the 
proposed site to observe the visible site conditions and establish boring locations in the 
field in accordance with ODOT's Specifications for Geotechnical Explorations (SGE).  It is 
anticipated that the boring locations will be positioned as indicated on the attached target 
soil boring plan. Based on understanding of the project it is anticipated that 29 project 
borings will be performed totaling 463 feet of soil drilling and 150 feet of rock coring. The 
specific location will be selected by NEAS field personnel to allow access by the drill rig, 
minimize the necessity of lane closures and traffic control, and avoid existing 
overhead/underground utilities.  The boring location will be located in the field by the 
project surveyor following drilling completion. With respect to underground utilities, NEAS 



22 
 

will coordinate with Ohio Utilities Protection Service (OUPS) to verify that the selected 
boring locations are clear of existing underground utilities. 

3. Test Drilling Program:  NEAS will drill the proposed borings using either a truck or track 
mounted drilling rig. It is understood that the borings will be located on or near the 
shoulder of the roadway and will be easily accessible by the drill crew. It is anticipated that 
temporary traffic control will be required during drilling operations at the boring locations. 
Any lane closures performed on the interstate will be completed by a subconsultant. NEAS 
personnel will provide temporary traffic control during drilling operations for less complex 
MOT situations in accordance with the Ohio Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices. 
Furthermore, it is estimated that the borings located along the rail road embankment will 
require a dozer for clearing/access purposes. Each boring will be drilled and backfilled in 
accordance with ODOT's SGE based upon specific structure type. Based on the information 
provided by the Project Geotechnical Engineer, it is anticipated that each boring will be 
extended through soil or bedrock to the depths indicated on the attached drilling 
schedule. Bedrock is expected to be encountered within the indicated boring depths. 
Undisturbed soil samples (Shelby Tubes) may be obtained during drilling operations if soft, 
fine-grained soils are encountered. The soil samples obtained from the exploration 
program will be visually observed in the field by HDR’s field representative and preserved 
for possible laboratory testing. Field boring logs will be prepared by HDR drilling 
inspection personnel and will include lithological descriptions, Standard Penetration 
Testing (SPT) results recorded as blows per 6-inch increment of penetration, and estimated 
unconfined shear strength values of specimens exhibiting cohesion (using a hand-
penetrometer). Groundwater level observations will be recorded by HDR drilling inspection 
personnel both during and after the completion of drilling. Groundwater level 
observations will be included on the individual boring logs.  

4. Laboratory Testing:  NEAS will perform geotechnical testing on the soil samples selected 
by Project Geotechnical Engineer in accordance with SGE requirements, as well as all 
applicable AASHTO specifications.  Based on the materials encountered, laboratory testing 
will likely include: determination of moisture content testing and classification testing in 
accordance with AASHTO M-145 “Classification of Soils and Soil-Aggregate Mixtures for 
Highway Construction Purposes,” as modified by ODOT "Classification of Soils".  These 
tests will be performed on representative samples recovered from the SPT sampling.  It 
should be noted that the laboratory effort will not include any visual description of soils.  
Other tests estimated to be performed included: Soil Unconfined Compression Test 
(AASHTO T296); Consolidated-Undrained Triaxial Compression Test (with pore pressure 
measurement) (AASHTO T297); One-Dimensional Consolidation Test (AASHTO T216); 
Unconfined Compressive Strength of Intact Rock Core Specimen (D7012, Method C); and, 
Elastic Moduli of Intact Rock Core Specimens in Uniaxial Compression (D7012, Method D). 
These tests will be performed on representative samples recovered from the SPT or 
Undisturbed soil sampling following the Project Geotechnical Engineer’s instructions.  



23 
 

5. Engineering Analysis and Recommendations:  To be prepared by HDR. 

6. Summary Report and Structure Foundation Exploration Plan Sheets:  To be prepared by 
HDR. 

 

IF-AUTHORIZED TASKS 
SUE Level A 

GF: See NEAS cost proposal.  GF effort for review and coordination. 

NEAS: If authorized, NEAS will perform fifteen (15) Level A test holes for the project.  The 
locations of the test holes are yet to be determined. Since details of the test hole locations are 
unknown, assumptions have been made to develop the proposed fee, as listed below.  If 
conditions of the actual test hole locations are different than assumed, additional fees may be 
required to complete the work.   

OUPS tickets will be utilized to request utility markings at the test hole locations.  Additional 
utility designations will be performed for verification before digging commences.  If the utility is 
non-metallic and does not have a tracer wire/tape installed, results cannot be guaranteed.  All 
holes that are performed will be charged whether the utility service is located or not.  If large 
debris or obstructions prevent successful location of a utility, the work performed at that 
location will still be charged.  The exposed utilities will be located by NEAS survey crews and 
incorporated into NEAS’s utility base map.   

For the purposes of this proposal, NEAS assumes: 

1. The test holes will be completed during a single mobilization of the vacuum truck and 
survey crew.  (Additional mobilizations will require additional fee.) 

2. The test holes will be located in soil conditions.  These locations will be backfilled with 
the native soils collected during the potholing process.  (Any test holes located in paved 
conditions may require additional fee for appropriate patching.) 

3. The test holes will be 7 feet deep, or less, and only the top of the facility will be located.  
(If the utilities are deeper than 7 feet, or if the width or bottom of the facility needs 
located, additional fee will be required.) 

4. The vacuum truck will be able to work within 30 feet of all test holes.  (Extra lengths of 
vacuum hose and/or clearing & grubbing needed to access a location will require an 
additional fee.) 

5. The test holes will require traffic control as the vacuum truck may not be able to park off 
the roadway surface.  Fee has been included for this cost including that 5 of the 15 test 
holes will require lane closure. 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  14    DATE: 11/27/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-76    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2017 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE 
TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR PLANNING REFUNDS TO ALLOW A 
REFUND OF PREVIOUSLY COLLECTED ADDITIONAL TRANSPORTATION 
FEES RELATED TO THE COMMUNITIES AT GLENROSS SUBDIVISION, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached memo and attached material.   
 
In summary from those documents, it has recently come to the attention of the 
City and Pulte Homes that there is an issue regarding the additional 
transportation fee (ATF) charged to certain homes during the building permit 
process for this subdivision. 
 
The Pre-Annexation Agreement (PAA) for the Communities at Glenross (aka the 
Barrows-McNamara Annexation) spelled out, among many things, that future 
additions to the city’s southeast, with the exception of the Evans Farms 
development, would be paying an additional transportation fee of $1,000 per 
dwelling unit.  The ATF issue in this case results from the switching of the 
boundaries and differing ATF fee of the Communities at Glenross and Glenross 
Golf Club.  Therefore, the ATF in Communities at Glenross shall be charged at 



the PAA mandated $1,000 per dwelling unit rate moving forward and the 
overcharged amount needs to be refunded to the developer. 
 
Pulte has submitted the formal request for reimbursement on November 8, 
2017.   
 
This Ordinance effectively allows the reimbursement to occur and the money to 
be disbursed in 2017 if the Emergency Clause is enacted.  This will ensure 
timely reimbursement of the funds to the developer. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To allow a refund of additional transportation fees for Communities at Glenross 
which were over collected. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
None.  These fees have previously been collected and were overpaid.  This 
would simply refund the amount of the overpayment. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-76 
 

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2017 
APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE 
ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR PLANNING REFUNDS TO 
ALLOW A REFUND OF PREVIOUSLY COLLECTED 
ADDITIONAL TRANSPORTATION FEES RELATED TO 
THE COMMUNITIES AT GLENROSS SUBDIVISION 
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware collects additional transportation fees 

required of each building permit in the Communities at Glenross subdivision 
and several surrounding subdivisions; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Glenross Golf Club and the Communities at Glenross 

(aka Barrows-McNamara) subdivisions have exchanged land and zoning in the 
past but the additional transportation fees apply based upon the original 
boundaries and Pre-Annexation Agreements in place at the time of annexation; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the additional transportation fees apply based upon the 

original boundaries contained within the Pre-Annexation Agreements in place 
at the time of annexation; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Glenross Golf Club is subject to specific transportation 

lot fees based upon a calculation per unit type but the Communities at 
Glenross are subject to a $1,000 per dwelling unit transportation fee; and 

 
WHEREAS, there was an over collection of transportation fees of $539.07 

per dwelling unit for 84 dwelling units in the original Communities at Glenross 
area; and  

 
WHEREAS, a supplemental appropriation will be necessary to allow for 

the refund of the over collected fees. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1. That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 
balance of the Glenn Road South Construction Fund $45,281.88 increasing the 
following account: 

 
Transportation Fee Refunds (496-4960-5601) $45,281.88 
 
SECTION 2. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 



of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.  

 
SECTION 3.  EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  That this ordinance is hereby 

declared to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public 
peace, safety, health and welfare of the City and for the further reason to 
provide for the timely refund in 2017 of the additional transportation fees in 
question, and as such will be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
passage. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE:  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 





















City Manager Report 20171127 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Riggle and Members of Council 
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE: November 22, 2017 
 
 
1. Calendar 
 See Attached 
 
2. Per Section 73 Of The City Charter The City Manager Is To Report 

Contract Agreements 
 See Attached 
 
3. Bi-Weekly Meetings 
 November 9 

* City of Delaware Thanksgiving Lunch  
November 11 
* Veteran’s Day Parade 
November 13 
* Rotary 
* City Council 
November 15 
* TriTraction Ribbon Cutting 
November 16 
* Third Thursday – Mid-Ohio Development Exchange 
November 17 
* MOMA Meeting 
November 20 
* Rotary  
November 21 
* Strand Board Meeting 
 

 
 







CONTRACT APPROVAL – November 21, 2017 
 

VENDOR 
 

EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT 
2017 

AMOUNT 
 

DEPARTMENT 
Wayne Fischer Maintenance agreement for 90 

acres of land adjacent to the 
Delaware Municipal Airport 

$1.00 Public Works 

Prime AE Engineering services to update the 
Water Treatment Plant Emergency 
Contigency Plan for OEPA 

$15,426.00 Public Utilities 

Servicemaster Clean Custodial Cleaning for City Hall, 
Justice Center, Public Works 

$92,191.44 Public Works 

Francis & Mary Lou Wilgus Maintenance agreement to farm 
and maintain 9.906 acres of land 
adjacent to the Delaware Municipal 
Airport 

$1.00 Public Works 

MSP Design Oak Grove Cemetery Master Plan $30,300.00 Parks 

     


	01 20171127
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

	02 20171113 council minutes
	03 20171120 organizational minutes
	04 20171017 parks minutes
	08 fact sheet res 17-63, LEADS
	09 res 17-63,  LEADS (2)
	10 LEADS - Information Exchange Agreement - Final 2017 0912 9-1-1 - Delawar...
	11 fact sheet res 17-64 Channing (Winter to Central) Parking Restrictions School Days Fact...
	12 res 17-64 Channing (Winter to Central) Parking Restrictions School Days
	13 Exhibit A-Channing St (E. Winter St to E. Central Ave) Parking Restricti...
	14 eva veritas liquor permit
	15 Eva Veritas Liquor Permit Report
	16 fact sheet ord 17-72, PC 2017-2592 Hook Revocable Trust REZ
	AN ORDINANCE FOR THE JUDITH D. HOOK REVOCABLE TRUST FOR APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FOR APPROXIMATELY 44.258 ACRES ON PARCEL #519-312-01-009-000 FROM R-4 (MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND R-6 (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) TO R-3 (ON...

	17 ord 17-72, PC 2017-2592 Hook Revocable Trust REZ
	AN ORDINANCE FOR THE JUDITH D. HOOK REVOCABLE TRUST FOR APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FOR APPROXIMATELY 44.258 ACRES ON PARCEL #519-312-01-009-000 FROM R-4 (MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND R-6 (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) TO R-3 (ON...

	18 PC 2017-2592 rezone amend hook trust
	19 fact sheet ord 17-73, 2017_Buehlers_TIF_
	20 ord 17-73, TIF Central Ave
	21 ord 17-73, TIF JacksonTIFSchoolNotices
	22 fact sheet ord 17-74, budget 2018
	24 fact sheet ord 17-75, appropriation The Point
	25 ord 17 -75,  appropriation The Point
	26 The Point Executive Scope Summary for Part 1 (2017-10-26)
	27 fact sheet ord 17-76 appropriation transportation fee refund communities at glenross
	AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2017 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR PLANNING REFUNDS TO ALLOW A REFUND OF PREVIOUSLY COLLECTED ADDITIONAL TRANSPORTATION FEES RELATED TO THE COMMUNITIES AT GLENROSS SUBDIVISION, AND DECLARING ...

	28 ord 17-76, appropriation reimburse of transportation fee Communities at Glenross
	29 Memo-Communities at Glenross
	30 Email- pulte Communities at Glenross
	31 city managers report 20171127
	32 calender
	33 20171127 contract approval
	CONTRACT APPROVAL – November 21, 2017
	2017
	DEPARTMENT
	AMOUNT
	VENDOR
	EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT

	Public Works
	$1.00
	Wayne Fischer
	Maintenance agreement for 90 acres of land adjacent to the Delaware Municipal Airport

	Public Utilities
	$15,426.00
	Prime AE
	Engineering services to update the Water Treatment Plant Emergency Contigency Plan for OEPA

	$92,191.44
	Servicemaster Clean
	Custodial Cleaning for City Hall, Justice Center, Public Works

	Public Works
	$1.00
	Francis & Mary Lou Wilgus
	Maintenance agreement to farm and maintain 9.906 acres of land adjacent to the Delaware Municipal Airport

	Parks
	$30,300.00
	MSP Design
	Oak Grove Cemetery Master Plan





